LAME COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Date: Thursday, January 27, 2022

Time: 6:00 p.m.

Location: Virtual — Zoom Meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83581700512
Meeting ID: 835 8170 0512

* denotes packet attachment

6:00 Call to Order

Call Regular Meeting to Order
1. Welcome & Introductions
2. Requests for Additions to the Agenda [to be considered under Business Items]

Public Comment
3. Comments from the Public

Presentations

4.  a* FY21 Financial Statements, Isler CPA — Audit Repori, Accept
** Hard copies will also be available at the meeting

Business Iltems
5. Consent Agenda [Board members may request an item be removed from the
Consent Agenda to discuss separately under Item 6]
ax* September 30, 2021 Minute§ — Approve
b.* FY23 Member Dues — Adopt
c.* Y23 Budget Assumptions and Processi — Adopt
6. Items Removed from Consent Agenda
7.* Ratification and Election of Executive Committee member
8.*  Lane Economic Committee Membera — Appoint

9.* | oan Advisory Committee Member — Appoint

Reports
10. a*  Executive Committee Reporf
b.* Advisory Council Reports

Wrap Up
11. Call for Future Agenda Items; Emerging Issues.

Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes. The Board has the right to ask disruptive attendees to leave the meeting. The Board may
choose not to respond to comments and lack of response does not indicate support or disagreement. Location is wheelchair accessible.
American Sign Language interpretation is available with 48 hours notice.
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LCOG

LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERMMENTS

Agenda Item Number
4.a.

FY21 Financial Statements and Audit Report

Date: January 27, 2022
Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: Accept the FY21 Financial Statements and
Audit

Background:

The “Annual Financial Report” for the year ending June 30, 2021, was
prepared by the LCOG fiscal staff in accordance with applicable statutes
and regulations and audited by the accounting firm of Isler, CPA. The
auditor has presented a summary of the audit and the agency’s Financial
Statements for the past year to the LCOG Audit Committee. The draft
report is available digitally on the LCOG Internet site for your consideration.

Isler conducted a thorough examination of the agency’s financial
transactions for FY21. The report of the auditors confirms that LCOG's
financial statements fairly represent LCOG'’s financial condition and
position at June 30, 2021, and operations are fairly presented in the
financial statements.

LCOG'’s overall financial position can be discerned from the statements in
this document. The statements depict the transactions that were
performed within and between LCOG’s General Fund, its Special Revenue
Funds, and Enterprise Funds. For a more explicit representation of how
LCOG performed during the past fiscal year, and some of the key factors
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that influenced LCOG's operations, your attention is directed to the
narrative entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis.”

If you have questions regarding the Financial Report or the independent
audit, please contact Brenda Wilson at 541- 682-4395.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the FY21 Financial Statements and
Audit.

Attachment: FY21 Financial Statements — Hard copies will also be provided at meeting.
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LCOG

LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
January 27, 2022

Lane Council of Governments Board of Directors:

In accordance with ORS 297.425, we are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
of the Lane Council of Governments (LCOG), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This report is published to
provide the LCOG Board, LCOG’s members, and the citizens of the Lane County region, LCOG staff, and other
readers with detailed information concerning LCOG’s financial position and activities.

This annual financial report includes information on the financial condition and operations of LCOG, and
management is responsible for the contents. This complete set of financial statements is presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The certified public accounting firm Isler CPA performed
an audit of the basic financial statements and other information using generally accepted auditing standards and
governmental auditing standards. Their unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements is located in the front
of the financial section of the ACFR.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. It provides additional
information to this letter and this letter should be read in conjunction with it.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects, and is reported in a
manner designed to fairly present the financial position and changes in the financial position of the various funds
of LCOG. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of LCOG’s financial activities
have been included.

Internal controls. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect LCOG’s assets from loss, theft, or
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of LCOG’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, LCOG’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
assurance, that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and accurate in all material respects.

Independent audit. In accordance with Oregon law, LCOG’s financial statements have been audited by Isler CPA.
The auditor has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on LCOG’s financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2021 (see pages 1-3). The independent audit of the financial statements was performed in accordance with
applicable auditing standards as described by Isler CPA in their reports included in this document.

LCOG is required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and the United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards can be found
in the Single Audit section, along with the auditor’s reports on Internal Controls and Compliance. The reports of
Isler CPA are included in this report.
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The MD&A immediately
follows the independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic
financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of LCOG

LCOG is one of the oldest regional councils in the nation, first organized in 1945 under the name Central Lane
County Planning Commission. It was reorganized in 1971 under an intergovernmental agreement pursuant to
Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 190 and the name was changed to Lane Council of Governments. LCOG is an
independent public agency that is established and supported by its member agencies to coordinate and provide
high-quality public services within Lane County, Oregon. The governing body of LCOG is its Board of Directors,
comprised of local elected and appointed officials designated to represent member governments and agencies.
LCOG does not act under the direction and control of any single governmental entity and has the following
characteristics:

. It is governed by a board of directors consisting of one appointed director from each of its 35-member
organizations.

. It is a legally separate entity.

. It is fiscally independent of all member organizations and all other local government entities.

. It is vested with all the powers, rights, and duties relating to those functions and activities that are vested

by law in each separate party to the intergovernmental agreement.

LCOG is located in Lane County, Oregon, the fourth most populous county in Oregon. LCOG’s region is the
entire Lane County area. Lane County’s population is 382,647. The size of Lane County is approximately 4554
square miles.

Lane County, Oregon

OREGON

A .

If a separate state, Lane County would be roughly the size of Connecticut with a population half the size of
Vermont. The LCOG region is also the state’s third largest Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) and the 145th
largest MSA in the country.
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Our Membership

Our members represent 35 local governments and agencies including Lane County, twelve cities, six school
districts, one education district, one college, two parks and recreation organizations, three library districts, four
utilities, a transit district, two fire districts, an ambulance district, and a port.

Member Governments

Bethel School District #52 City of Westfir Lane Transit District

City of Coburg Creswell School District #40 McKenzie School District #68

City of Cottage Grove Eugene Water & Electric Board Port of Siuslaw

City of Creswell Emerald People’s Utility District Rainbow Water District

City of Dunes City Eugene School District #4J] River Road Park & Recreation District
City of Eugene Fern Ridge Library District Siuslaw Library District

City of Florence Heceta Water People’s Utility District Siuslaw Valley Fire District

City of Junction City Junction City RFPD South Lane School District #45J3

City of Lowell Lane Community College Springfield School District #19

City of Oakridge Lane County Western Lane Ambulance District
City of Springfield Lane Education Service District Willamalane Park & Recreation District
City of Veneta Lane Library District

Our Mission

LCOG’s mission is to coordinate and provide high quality public services in Lane County. Lane Council of
Governments is dedicated to serving the public interest and enhancing the quality of life for citizens of Lane
County.

Together with our member governments, we seek to create more accessible, sustainable, prosperous, and livable
communities.

LCOG Services

LCOG services are offered over four broad areas: Government Services (planning, transportation and
telecommunications); Senior and Disability Services; Business Services; and Administration. LCOG employs over
280 people and is the designated comprehensive planning and review agency for a number of federal and state
programs. LCOG also serves as the fiscal agent for various federal and state programs carried out by member
entities and serves as a coordinating agency for local government long-range planning activities.

LCOG provides services to its members and agency partners through these service areas:

. Government Services - Planning, Transportation, and IT/Telecommunications/Cable;

. Senior & Disability Services - Title III -Older Americans Act and Title XIX Medicaid, and Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program;

. Business Services — Business Loans, Building Management, and Minutes Recorder Services;

. Administrative Services - Board of Directors and Executive Management Services, Finance and Budget,

Human Resources, Information Technology, and Administration Support

Budget

The annual budget serves as the foundation for LCOG’s financial planning and control. The budget process begins
in December with LCOG management and staff identifying projects for the subsequent year as well as grant
projects that are not expected to be completed by the end of the current fiscal year.
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Over the course of several months, LCOG management, staff, and advisory committees, the Budget Committee,
and the Board of Directors are involved in defining the goals and objectives, as well as the projects, to be included
in the work program. The LCOG Budget Committee meets to review the budget background and trends which may
shape the budget. In June, a public meeting is held where all interested parties are invited to comment on the work
plan, with final adoption by the Board of Directors.

The level of budgetary control is at the service level. Costs for projects can be modified as long as the total remains
the same at the funding source level. Throughout the year, budget adjustments are proposed by staff for new grant

funding and/or a realignment of projects and services, and reviewed by the Budget Committee.

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this financial statement for the governmental funds and proprietary
funds for which annual budgets are adopted.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Outlook

Unprecedented. How many times have we heard that word over the last year and a half? The outbreak of the
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) in March 2020 compelled LCOG to implement emergency response measures to
combat the pandemic. The effort to combat the pandemic extended into Fiscal Year 2021. Yet while our world has
shifted, day-to-day operations have continued at LCOG. As each of us have dealt with the pandemic’s twists and
turns in our personal and professional lives, at LCOG we have remained committed to continuing timely delivery
of high-quality services to our members, consumers, and partners.

Unlike its member agencies, LCOG is primarily dependent upon formula revenues and planning grants. The
majority of revenues LCOG receives are from grants or contracts. The majority of revenues in FY21 consisted of
federal and state grants and contracts. As federal or state contracts increase or as multi-year projects are
completed, LCOG’s budget fluctuates in both revenues and matching expenditures. The most significant source of
local revenue is from service contracts.

The Oregon Office of Economic Analysis (OEA) reported in August 2021 that strong household incomes, boosted
considerably by federal aid during the Pandemic, were providing consumers the feeling of safety to spend over the
past year. Businesses, however, have struggled to keep up with staffing and demand. And while the actual number
of jobs created in 2021 is expected to be the largest on record in Oregon, with the state’s labor market expected to
regain all of its lost jobs by summer 2022, growth in a supply-constrained economy has proved to be challenging
with businesses struggling with supply chains and a tight labor market.

Next year, even with uncertainty about how long the Pandemic will last, Oregon’s economic outlook looks bright.
The OEA reports recovery will be faster and more complete as some of the Pandemic-specific challenges fade with
the underlying economy on solid footing due to the strength of corporate and household balance sheets.

In that LCOG relies heavily on contracts from our member agencies, economic growth can have positive results for
LCOG revenue. As economic growth steadies, so does the need for services. A continuous challenge for LCOG is
to accurately project contracts for a future time period that is 18 months in advance of the fiscal year.
Expenditures are managed carefully, and adjustments made as conditions require and any change in revenues must
be matched by a change in expenditures.

Long-Range Planning and Major Initiatives

Long-Range Planning



A significant part of LCOG’s annual budget process is dedicated to the development of a reasonable plan regarding
revenue sources, operating expenditures, proposed new amenities and programs, staffing requirements, capital
plans, and debt management plans for the upcoming fiscal year. A long-range financial plan is difficult given
LCOG’s funding is largely based on grants and contracts which emerge over time, so there is always greater
variability in LCOG’s budgeting process than may be present for local government units that rely upon a tax base.
LCOG develops each fiscal year’s budget knowing that current budget decisions can negatively impact long-term
financial goals.

Through sound fiscal management, LCOG has positioned itself well to cope with revenue fluctuations and
budgetary issues over time. LCOG continues to balance revenues and expenditures, maintain or enhance services,
and build reserves. LCOG consistently strives to lower costs and rates while maintaining the level of services our
members and the residents of Lane County expect.

The Board of Directors has approved policies establishing appropriate levels of cash reserves for operations,
capital replacement, and debt service. The Operating Contingency Account is required to be maintained at a
minimum level of two months of operating costs consisting of personnel costs and the equivalent of one quarterly
mortgage loan payment, including principal and interest. As of June 30, 2021, the Operating Contingency Account
had a balance of $273,777, per policy requirements. The Capital Contingency Account does not have a level
established by policy, but as of June 30, 2021, had a balance of $675,500.

In addition, LCOG Senior and Disability Services is required by the State of Oregon Department of Human
Services to develop an Area Plan on Aging and Disability Services. The Area Plan is a multi-year document, with
annual updates, and helps create and maintain a service delivery system to meet the needs of older adults and
adults with disabilities in Lane County. The Area Plan provides guidance for expenditures in the upcoming fiscal
year and beyond.

LCOG is not alone in facing the challenges stemming from the global Pandemic, and continues to reinforce fiscal
stewardship, operational efficiencies, strategic investments and effective change management. The overall
economy and surrounding region have many economic trends which indicate that LCOG remains well positioned
to adapt to the ongoing Pandemic while maintaining its high level of service to the region.
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Awards and Acknowledgements

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has awarded LCOG with a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for its ACFR consecutively for the last three fiscal years. This was the fourth
time LCOG has submitted a ACFR for consideration of this award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,
the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR with contents that conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. This ACFR
is intended to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and will be submitted to GFOA for
their consideration of another certificate award.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skill, effort, and dedication of the Fiscal
Unit and the many members of other departments who responded so positively to the requests for detailed
information that accompanies each annual audit. We also wish to acknowledge the professional and technical
assistance of the audit staff of Isler CPA. Finally, we extend our appreciation to LCOG’s Audit Committee and the
LCOG Board of Directors for their support and commitment in maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in planning and conducting the financial affairs of LCOG.

Respectfully submitted,

§ - ' )
BRENDALEE S. WILSON KEINA WOLF
Executive Director Fiscal and Budget Manager

Special acknowledgment goes to:

Laura Campbell, Administrative Coordinator

Emily Farrell, Senior and Disabilities Services Division Director
Ashley Garcia, Fiscal Assistant

David Joyal, Senior Financial Analyst

Elena Kuhnhenn, Senior Financial Analyst

Sondra Marks, Financial Associate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Lane Council of Governments
Lane County, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lan uncil of Governments (LCOG) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financidl’statements, which collectively comprise
LCOG'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

these financial statements in accordance
es of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant t preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions tatements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standard in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained i ¢ ting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards reguire thatwe plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

An audit involves performing btain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

: d on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the fina ®ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal con elevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of LCOG as of June 30, 2021 and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Schedule of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Pension Contributions,
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and the Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual for the General Fund, Telecommunications Fund, and Grants
and Contracts Fund (the "budgetary schedules"), as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of the
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Pension Contributions, and Schedule of Changes in Total
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because imited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

LCOG’s basic financial statements. The budgetary sche i ove are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to i
prepare the basic financial statements. The budgetary sch
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and ce ditional procedures, including comparing and
reconcmng such information d|rectly to the underlying accountl nd other records used to prepare the basic

N r additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United S n our opinion, the budgetary schedules are

fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the b

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpa ini on the financial statements that collectively comprise
LCOG'’s basic financial statements. Th r

statements and budgetary com dules statlst|cal sectlon and contlnumg d|sclosure section are
presented for purposes of adg is\an
accompanying schedule o
required by Title 2 U.S. Code
Principles, and Audit Require
statements.

al awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
gulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
deral Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial

of Federal F
nts for f

The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statement themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory and statistical tables section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 27, 2022 on our
consideration of LCOG’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering LCOG’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Minimum Standards of Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report
dated January 27, 2022 on our consideration of LCOG’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an
opinion on compliance.

ISLER CPA

By: Gatlin Hawkins, CPA, a member of the firm
Eugene, Oregon
January 27, 2022
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Lane Council of Governments

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

The management of the Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) presents this narrative overview to facilitate both a
short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities LCOG for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that
existed as of the date of the independent auditor’s report. Additional information outside the scope of this analysis
can be found in the Letter of Transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The overall net position of LCOG as of June 30, 2021 is $7,582,877, a decrease of $1,160,385 from last year,
which includes a prior period adjustment. This decrease is due to a combination of an increase in net position
related to business-type activities (Proprietary Funds) of $438,186 and a decline in governmental activities
(General Fund and Special Revenue Funds) of $1,598,571 (this includes deferred inflow and outflows of PERS
pension and other post-employment benefits liability).

LCOG?’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2021 increased $3,452,117. The increase was
largely due to a $3,366,565 increase in deferred outflows related to pensions and a decrease of $175,404 in current
assets.

LCOG?’s total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2021 increased $4,612,502. The increase was
attributable to increases in long-term liabilities of $4,849,513. This increase in liabilities is due primarily to a
decrease in the assumed rate of return used to calculate LCOG's proportionate share of net pension liability.

The restricted net position at June 30, 2021 is $9,545,784, an increase of $683,668 from the prior year. LCOG’s
unrestricted portion of net position is a negative $14,491,645.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2)
fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.

Government —Wide Financial Statements

The first two financial statements that appear in the Annual Report are the government-wide financial statements.
In addition to fund financial statements, reconciliations are also provided. These reconciliations highlight the
relationship (differences) between governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities to the governmental funds financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements present an overall picture of LCOG’s financial position and results of
operations. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
LCOG’s financial performance in a manner similar to the financial reports provided to stockholders of private-
sector companies in that both use accrual accounting and are designed to provide operational accountability. This
means reporting the extent to which LCOG met its operating objectives.



Lane Council of Governments

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Most of LCOG’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out
of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using
modified accrual accounting, which emphasizes current assets and liabilities. Essentially the governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of LCOG’s general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance LCOG programs and services.

Government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities.

Government-wide financial statements distinguish between the activities of LCOG that are principally supported
by grants or contracts, and the General Fund activities which are intended to be covered primarily by dues paid by
LCOG’s members. Changes in net position are a result of the financial activities of the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds which account for grants and contract funds.

The Statement of Net Position is the basic government-wide statement of financial position. It presents information
on all assets and liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources, with the difference
reported as net position. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how LCOG’s net position
changed during the fiscal year. The statement is a full accrual statement, showing both cash basis and values that
have been earned or incurred but not actualized by June 30, 2021. Changes to net position are reported when the
underlying event giving rise to the transaction occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid. Since it is not
dependent on the timing of cash flows, some revenues and expenses that are reported in this statement will result in
cash inflows and outflows in future fiscal years.

This Statement of Net Position presents the same information as a balance sheet. However it assesses the balance
of LCOG’s assets and the resources LCOG can use to operate and provide services against LCOG’s liabilities — its
obligation to turn over resources to others. It is what LCOG would have remaining after satisfying its liabilities.
Over time (beyond year to year), increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of LCOG as a whole is improving or deteriorating.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, LCOG is divided into two types of activities:

Governmental activities — Most of LCOG’s services are reported here, including the Board, Government
Services, and Senior and Disability Services. Federal, state and local grants and contracts finance most of these
activities. A total of 66 managerial funds are consolidated into the three reporting funds: General Fund,
Telecommunications Fund, and Grants and Contracts Fund.

Business-type activities — LCOG’s business-type reporting funds are the Building Program for real property
management, Loan Programs, Minutes Recorder services, and Economic Development services. Charges for
service are the primary source of revenue for business-type activities.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report on governmental funds and proprietary funds. The primary role of fund financial
statements is fiscal accountability. This means demonstrating whether LCOG complied, in the short-term (usually
a fiscal year), with the legal restrictions associated with its funding.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Governmental fund financial statements report the same activities as the government-wide financial statements but
they use modified accrual accounting. Governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term annual inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year, rather than the longer-term focus of governmental activities as seen in the government-wide financial
statements. Proprietary fund financial statements report the same as the government-wide financial statement,
which both reflect the full accrual basis of accounting.

LCOG has three governmental reporting funds — the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund — Telecommunications
and Special Revenue Fund — Grants and Contracts. The funds are used to account for the activities supported by
member dues, administrative services, grants and contracts, and other similar types of revenue sources. In addition,
LCOG has two major proprietary reporting funds, the Park Place Building and Loan Programs funds. LCOG has
two non-major proprietary funds, the Minutes Recorder and Economic Development funds. These proprietary
funds account for the activities supported by service charges, fees, and rental income.

Fund Financial Statements include:

Governmental Funds:

° Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds;

. Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position;

. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

. Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison of the governmental funds to the
government-wide statements. A comparison will provide a better understanding of the near-term and long-term
impact on LCOG’s financial decisions. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s near-term
financing requirements. The reconciliations are reported in the basic financial statements.

Proprietary Funds:

. Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds;

. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position — Proprietary Funds;
° State of Cash Flows- Proprietary Funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. The notes can
be found in the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

Lane Council of Governments

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a LCOG’s financial health. LCOG’s assets and deferred
outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $7,582,877 at the close of the fiscal

year ending June 30, 2021, a decrease of $1,160,385.

Below is the summary information for the Statement of Net Position:

Assets

Current assets
Interfund advances
Capital Assets

Other noncurrent assets

Total assets
Deferred outflows

Total assets and deferred
outflows

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows

Total liabilities and
deferred inflows

Net position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

$ 14,507,896 §$ 14,973,331 § 3,336,648 $ 3,046,617 § 17,844,544 § 18,019,948
43,166 85,483 (43,166) (85,483) - -
10,834,785 10,206,510 5,926,046 6,297,888 16,760,831 16,504,398

- - 2,672,563 2,668,040 2,672,563 2,668,040

25,385,847 25,265,324 11,892,091 11,927,062 37,277,938 37,192,386
10,393.844 7,027.279 - - 10,393.844 7,027,279
35,779,691 32,292,603 11,892.091 11,927,062 47,671,782 44.219.665
4,975,249 5,202,860 338,783 561,850 5,314,032 5,764,710
28.119.586 23.019.983 5,204,952 5,455,042 33,324,538 28.475.025
33,094,835 28,222,843 5,543,735 6,016,892 38,638,570 34,239,735
1,450,335 1,236,668 - - 1,450,335 1,236,668
34.545.170 29.459.511 5,543,735 6,016,892 40,088,905 35.476.,403
10,834,785 10,206,510 1,693,953 1,931,985 12,528,738 12,138,495
9,545,784 8,862,116 - - 9,545,784 8,862,116
(19,146.048) (16,235.534) 4.654.403 3.978.185 (14.,491,645) (12,257.349)
§_1234521 §_2.833.092 §_6,348.356 $_ 5910.170 §_ 7.582.877 $__ 8.743.262

The largest portion of LCOG's net position, $12,528,738, is its investment in capital assets. LCOG’s investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt. Capital assets do not represent readily available resources to be used
for ongoing operations or to liquidate existing liabilities.

The remaining portion of LCOG’s net position consists of restricted and unrestricted resources. The restricted
portion of LCOG’s net position is $9,545,784 which represents resources that are subject to external restrictions as
to how they may be used. This category increased $683,668 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. LCOG’s
unrestricted portion of net position is a negative $14,491,645.
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Statement of Activities

The Statement of Activities presents the same financial ending position as the Statement of Net Position:
$7,582,877 at June 30, 2021, which is a decrease in net position of $1,160,385 from prior year. As noted in the
table, most of LCOG's funding comes from operating grants and contributions. The balance of funding comes
from local grants, contracts and other sources. Total revenues in 2021 were $37,674,036, an increase from 2020 of
$687,226.

Total expenses increased from prior year by $1,198,072. Of the net total increase in operating expenses,
$1,135,966 was Governmental activities and $62,106 was Business - Type activities.

Below is the summary information for the Statement of Activities:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services 7,910,337 7,308,983 - - 7,910,337 7,308,983
Operating grants and
contributions 27,735,499 28,083,339 515,000 - 28,250,499 28,083,339
Park Place Building - - 954,050 1,022,967 954,050 1,022,967
Loan program - - 209,752 212,866 209,752 212,866
Minutes recording - - 77,126 82,384 77,126 82,384
Economic development - - 30,048 32,500 30,048 32,500
General revenues
Unrestricted Investment
earnings 4,264 4,264 4,983 8,304 9,247 12,568
Member dues 232977 231,203 - - 232977 231,203
Total revenues 35.883.077  35.627.789 1.790.959 1.359.021 37.674.036 36.986.810
Expenses
Board/executive services 670,263 823,264 - - 670,263 823,264
Governmental Services 8,485,363 8,045,146 - - 8,485,363 8,045,146
Senior and Disability Services 28,357,062 27,508,312 - - 28,357,062 27,508,312
Park Place Building - - 1,034,467 998,585 1,034,467 998,585
Loan program - - 224,392 182,444 224,392 182,444
Minutes recording - - 49,886 51,597 49,886 51,597
Economic development g g 12,988 27.001 12,988 27.001
Total expenses 37.512.688  36.376.722 1,321,733 1.259.627 38.834.421 37.636.349
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under)expenses $ (1,629,611) $ (748,933) $ 469226 $ 99394 $ (1,160,385) $  (649,539)
Transfers
Transfers 31,040 (275.911) (31.040) 275911 - -
Change in net position (1,598,571)  (1,024,844) 438,186 375,305 (1,160,385) (649,539)
Net position, July 1 2,833,092 3,605,280 5,910,170 5,787,521 8,743,262 9,392,801
Prior period adjustment - 252.656 - (252.656) - -
Net position, June 30 $_1.234,521 $_2.833.002 $_06.348356 S_5.910.170 $__7.582.877 §__8.743.262




Lane Council of Governments
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

As previously discussed, LCOG uses fund accounting to demonstrate transparency and ensure compliance with
finance related legal requirements.

Funds have been established by LCOG to account for revenues that are restricted to certain uses, comply with legal
requirements, or account for the use of federal and state grants. As noted earlier, LCOG uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial-related legal requirements. Fund financial statements are
provided for the governmental funds (General Fund, Telecommunications Fund, and Grant and Contracts Funds)
and for the proprietary funds (Park Place Building, Loan Programs, Economic Development and Minutes
Recording Services).

Fund financial statements track the flow of resources in and out of the funds. In addition to revenues and
expenditures coming and going out of LCOG finances, "other financing sources or uses" are also noted. Other
sources and uses are shown separate from revenue and expenditures to facilitate assessing the balance between
ongoing revenues and expenditures related to the basic operations of LCOG. Bottom line is the net change in fund
balance or net position - revenues minus expenditures and plus or minus "other financing sources or uses."

The focus of LCOG's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing LCOG's requirements for funding day to day
operations. Significant issues regarding the governmental funds are listed below.

As of the end of the fiscal year, LCOG's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$10,626,011, an increase of $770,059 in comparison to the prior year. $284,526 of the fund balance is
nonspendable because it consists of prepaid expenditures and advances to other funds, $9,545,784 of the fund
balance is restricted by external limits on how the resources may be used, and $795,701 is available for use without
restrictions.

The General Fund reported an ending fund balance of $848,433, with expenditures in excess of revenue of
$255,865. The General Fund change in fund balance was a decrease of $255,865, due primarily to revenues from
local sources being less than expected while needing to maintain existing levels of expenditures.

What follows is detail to the fund analysis.
General Fund

LCOG relies primarily upon grants and contracts for its funding, therefore, there is more pressure to ensure a
positive balance remaining in the General Fund in that the General Fund is the source services will look to for any
required financial support. LCOG continues to improve on forecasting and projecting costs and to plan for
anticipated changes to our services that will affect LCOG's financial stability. The General Fund change in fund
balance was an decrease of $255,865, due primarily to revenues from local sources being less than expected while
needing to maintain existing levels of expenditures.
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Special Revenue Fund - Grants and Contract Services
Two material service areas combine on the statement:

Special Revenue Fund - Grants and Contracts Services accounts for programs or activities funded by federal, state
or local grants and contracts.

Government Services - Planning, Transportation, Telecommunication, and Administration; and Senior and
Disability Services and Administration.

Enterprise Fund

The major enterprise funds are Park Place Building and Loan Programs. Park Place Building is funded primarily
by rental income and Loan Programs or activities are funded by business loans through repayment of principal and
interest and loan contracts. Non-major enterprise funds consist of Economic Development and Minutes Recorder
Services, which are both funded by fees for service. These various proprietary accounts are presented in the
enterprise fund statement.

Enterprise Fund - Park Place Building

The Park Place Building Fund had a decrease in net position during the fiscal year of $82,358 as a result of a
decrease in capital assets.

Enterprise Fund - Loan Programs

Loan Programs had an increase in net position of $508,658 due to the addition of EDA-3 funds received as a result
of the CARES Act.
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CAPITAL ASSETS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Increase

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 (Decrease)
Land $ -8 - $ 436200 $ 436200 $ 436,200 $ 436,200 $ -
CIP - 969,103 - - - 969,103 (969,103)
Building - - 3,966,769 4,114,742 3,966,769 4,114,742 (147,973)
Furniture and Equipment 2,851,769 1,314,722 - - 2,851,769 1,314,722 1,537,047
Building Improvements 32,817 24,080 1,523,077 1,746,946 1,555,894 1,771,026 (215,132)
Fiber optics 7,954,616 7,843,946 - - 7,954,616 7,843,946 110,670
Software and Intangibles 4,417) 54,659 - - 4,417) 54,659 (59,076)
Vehicles - - - - - - -
Capital Assets, Net $10,834.785 $10.206,510 $_5.926.046 $_6.297.888 $16.760.831 $16.504398 $__ 256.433

Total investment in capital assets at June 30, 2021, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, was
$16,760,831, a increase of $256,433 from the prior year. An increase in book value of approximately $628,275 for
governmental activities and a decrease of $371,842 for business activities is the effect of accumulated depreciation
on the assets. There were new capital additions of $2,329,377 for the year ending June 30, 2021. For more detailed
information, please see Nofe 5 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements of this report.

DEBT SERVICE

LCOG's outstanding debt continues to decline and there were no new debt incurrences during FY21. LCOG does
not issue debt and as a result does not have a credit rating. In the last five years, 2017 to 2021, LCOG has reduced
the number of outstanding building loans from seven to one and paid off one of six USDA business loans. For
more detailed information, see Note 6 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements of this report.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Pursuant to the Oregon Revised Statutes 294.900 to 294.930, LCOG is required to follow certain procedures
related to the adoption of a budget. The FY21 Budget was adopted on June 25, 2021, at $52,151,104. On April 13,
2021, the Board approved the FY21 Revised Budget at $56,809,299, an increase of $4,658,195.

Resources in the General Fund were originally budgeted at $664,893 but was increased in the FY21 Revised
Budget by $221,741 to reflect an increase in local revenue and transfer of excess revenue from Enterprise Fund —
Minutes Recorder Program. On the requirement side, the General Fund was originally budgeted at $664,893, which
was increased by $221,741 to account for moving part of the cost of the Governmental Services Director position
to the General Fund, legal fees for a billing issue, and a transfer to cover a shortfall in the Government Services
Fund.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

A large percentage of revenues LCOG receives is from grants or contracts with matching requirements as federal
or state contracts increase or decrease or as multi-year projects are completed. A continuous challenge for LCOG
is to accurately project grants and contracts for a future time period that is 18 months in advance of the fiscal year.
An adequate staffing pattern and expenditure forecast must match the projected revenues. State government
continues to be our largest funding source. Federal funds flowing through the state are secure from annual state
budget challenges, in that they are segregated from other state funding sources.

The LCOG FY22 Proposed Budget is developed strategically, using the best information available beginning with
Budget Assumptions adopted by the LCOG Board in December of each year. Combined with known and expected
revenues, a Work Program is created with a goal of keeping costs down, stabilizing rates, and providing
outstanding services to the region. The FY22 Adopted Budget reflects an overall increase in revenues of 6.9% or
$3,605,963 more than the FY21 Adopted Budget.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of Lane Council of Governments'
finances and to demonstrate LCOG's accountability for the resources it receives. If you have any questions about
this report or need additional financial information, inquiries should be directed to:

David Joyal

Senior Financial Analyst

859 Willamette Street, Suite 500

Eugene, Oregon 97401

Telephone: 541-682-3384 / Email: djoyal@lcog.org

12



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities



Lane Council of Governments
Statement of Net Position

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Current maturities of loans receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Due to/from other funds (internal balance)
Other current assets
Prepaid expense
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Due to/from other funds (internal balance)
Loans receivable, net of current maturities and allowance
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OPEB Related Deferrals
Pension Related Deferrals

Total Deferred Outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Current maturities of loans payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Proportionate share of net pension liability
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Security deposits
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OPEB Related Deferrals
Pension Related Deferrals
Total Deferred Inflows

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Grants and Contracts
Unrestricted

June 30, 2021
Business-type
Governmental Activities Activities Total

$ 10,155,682 $ 2,960,638 $ 13,116,320
4,108,226 82,955 4,191,181
- 279,927 279,927

- 12,768 12,768

671 671) -

1,957 - 1,957
241,360 1,031 242.391
14,507,896 3,336,648 17,844,544
43,166 (43,166) -

- 2,672,563 2,672,563
10,834,785 5,926,046 16,760,831
10,877,951 8,555,443 19.433.394
25,385,847 11,892,091 37,277,938
79,841 - 79,841
10,314,003 - 10,314,003
10,393,844 - 10,393,844
35,779,691 11,892,091 47,671,782
1,520,598 35,267 1,555,865
2,941 - 2,941
2,181,729 9,085 2,190,814

- 20,137 20,137

219,781 24,375 244,156
1,050,200 - 1,050,200

- 249.919 249.919

4,975,249 338,783 5,314,032
27,546,414 - 27,546,414
116,689 - 116,689
456,483 - 456,483

- 5,168,890 5,168,890

- 36,062 36,062
28,119,586 5,204,952 33,324,538
33,094,835 5,543,735 38,638,570
29,486 - 29,486
1,420,849 - 1,420,849
1,450,335 - 1,450,335
34,545,170 5,543,735 40,088,905
10,834,785 1,693,953 12,528,738
9,545,784 - 9,545,784
(19.146,048) 4,654,403 (14.491,645)
$ 1,234,521 $ 6,348,356 $ 7,582,877

Total net position

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net Revenue (Expense) and Change in Net Assets

Operating Grants

Charges for and Governmental ~ Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:

Board/executive $ 670,263 $ 83,172 § - 8 (587,091) $ - 8 (587,091)

Government Services 8,485,363 6,418,275 2,218,840 151,752 - 151,752

Senior and Disability Service 28.357.062 1.408.890 25,516,659 (1.431,513) - (1,431,513)
Total governmental activities 37,512,688 7,910,337 27.735.499 (1,866.852) - (1,866.852)
Business-type activities:

Park Place Building 1,034,467 954,050 - - (80,417) (80,417)

Loan program 224,392 209,752 515,000 - 500,360 500,360

Minutes recording 49,886 77,126 - - 27,240 27,240

Economic Development 12,988 30,048 - - 17,060 17,060
Total business-type activities 1,321,733 1,270,976 515,000 - 464.243 464.243
Total activities $_ 38834421 $_ 9.181.313 $__ 28.250,499 (1,866,852) 464,243 (1,402,609)
General revenues (expenses) and transfers:
Unrestricted investment earnings 4,264 4,983 9,247
Member dues 232,977 - 232,977
Transfers 31,040 (31.040) -
Total general revenues and transfers 268.281 (26.057) 242.224
Change in net position (1,598,571) 438,186 (1,160,385)
Net position, beginning of year 2.833.092 5.910.170 8,743.262
Net position, end of year §_ 1234521 $_ 6348356 $__ 7.582.877

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental Funds

. Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds

. Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental Funds

° Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities

Proprietary Funds
. Statement of Net position- Proprietary Funds
. Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Net Position- Proprietary Funds

. Statement of Cash Flows- Proprietary Funds



Lane Council of Governments
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Total Governmental

General Fund Grants and Contracts Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 1,976,090 $ 8,179,590 $ 10,155,680

Prepaid expenditures 9,566 231,794 241,360

Accounts receivable 68,750 4,039,476 4,108,226

Other current assets 667 1,290 1,957

Advance to other funds 43,166 - 43,166

Due from other funds 171.364 - 171.364

Total assets $ 2,269,603 $ 12,452,150 $ 14,721,753
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Due to other funds $ - $ 170,693 $ 170,693

Accounts payable 149,774 1,370,824 1,520,598

Intergovernmental payable - 2,941 2,941

Accrued payroll and related

liabilities 1,051,615 1,130,114 2,181,729

Unearned Revenue 219,781 - 219,781
Total liabilities 1,421,170 2,674,572 4,095,742
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 52,732 231,794 284,526
Restricted to:

Grants and Contracts - 9,545,784 9,545,784
Committed 273,777 - 273,777
Unassigned 521,924 - 521,924

Total fund balances 848.433 9.777.578 10,626,011
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,269,603 $ 12.452.150 $ 14,721,753
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Lane Council of Governments
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 10,626,011

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds
Cost 15,851,582
Accumulated Depreciation (5.016.797) 10,834,785

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period, and therefore are not reported in the governmental
funds
Compensated absences (1,166,887)

The Net Pension Asset (Liability), and related deferred
inflows and outflows is the difference between the total
pension liability and assets set aside to pay benefits
earned to past and current employees and beneficiaries

Proportionate share of Net Pension Asset (Liability) (27,546,414)
Deferred Outflows - Pension 10,314,003
Deferred Inflows - Pension (1.420.849) (18,653,260)

The Net Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability,
and related deferred inflows and outflows is the difference
between the total OPEB liability and assets set aside to
pay benefits earned to past and current employees and

beneficiaries
Net OPEB liability (456,483)
Deferred Outflows - OPEB 79,841
Deferred Inflows - OPEB (29.486) (406,128)
Net position of governmental activities $ 1.234.521
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Lane Council of Governments

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues

Member agency dues

Federal and state grants and
contracts

Other local sources

Rental and In-Kind Income
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current

Board/executive services

Government services

Senior and disability services
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Total Governmental

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

General Fund Grants and Contracts Funds
232977 $ - 232,977
- 27,735,499 27,735,499
405,627 7,425,802 7,831,429
- 83.172 83.172
638,604 35,244,473 35,883,077
412,040 - 412,040
- 8,671,548 8,671,548
- 26,060,469 26,060,469
412.040 34.732.017 35.144.057
226,564 512,456 739,020
30,000 1,738 31,738
(699) - (699)
29,301 1,738 31,039
255,865 514,194 770,059
592,568 9,263,384 9,855,952
848433 §$ 9,777,578 10.,626.011
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Lane Council of Governments
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds, including
prior period adjustments $ 770,059

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense:
Capital asset additions 1,360,274
Current year depreciation (731,999) 628,275

Pension expense and the changes in deferred inflows and
outflows related to the net pension liability represents the
changes in net pension asset (liability) from year to year due to
changes in total pension liability and the fair value of pension
plan net position available to pay pension benefits (2,820,768)

Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) expense and the
changes in deferred inflows and outflows related to the net
OPEB liability represents the changes in net OPEB liability
from year to year due to changes in total OPEB liability and
the fair value of OPEB plan net position available to pay
OPEB benefits 7,472

Some expenses do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditure in the
governmental funds.

Compensated absences (183,609)
Change in net position of government activities (including prior
period adjustments) $ (1,598.571)
18
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Lane Council of Governments
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2021

Park Place Total Nonmajor
Building Loan Programs Funds Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 797,370 $ 2,133,393 § 29875 $ 2,960,638
Accounts receivable - 8,464 74,491 82,955
Current maturities of loans
receivable - 279,927 - 279,927
Accrued interest receivable - 12,768 - 12,768
Prepaid expense 37 966 28 1,031
Total current assets 797,407 2,435,518 104,394 3,337,319
Noncurrent assets
Loans receivable, net of current
maturities and allowance - 2,672,563 - 2,672,563
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 5.926.046 - - 5.926.046
Total noncurrent assets 5.926,046 2,672,563 - 8.598.609
Total assets 6,723,453 5,108,081 104,394 11,935,928
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Due to other funds - - 671 671
Accounts payable 323 6,171 28,773 35,267
Accrued payroll and related
liabilities 352 8,488 245 9,085
Accrued interest payable 14,783 5,354 - 20,137
Unearned revenue - - 24,375 24,375
Current maturities of loans payable 139.609 110.310 - 249919
Total current liabilities 155,067 130,323 54,064 339,454
Noncurrent liabilities
Interfund advance 43,166 - - 43,166
Long-term debt, net of current
maturities 4,092,484 1,076,406 - 5,168,890
Security deposits 36.062 - - 36.062
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,171,712 1.076.406 - 5.248.118
Total liabilities 4,326,779 1,206,729 54,064 5,587,572
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets 1,693,953 - - 1,693,953
Unrestricted 702,721 3.901,352 50,330 4.654.403
Total net position (deficit) §____2.396.674 $__ _3.901.352 § 50330 §___ 6,348,356
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Lane Council of Governments
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Operating revenues
Charges for services and rent
Interest income
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Materials and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Federal and state grants and contracts
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total transfers

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Total
Nonmajor
Park Place Loan Programs Funds Total
$ 954,050 $ 209,752 $ 107,174 $ 1,270,976
- 4,705 - 4,705
954,050 214,457 107,174 1,275,681
9,006 153,774 13,899 176,679
470,887 58,034 48,975 577,896
371.842 - - 371.842
851,735 211.808 62.874 1,126,417
102,315 2,649 44,300 149,264
- 515,000 - 515,000
278 - - 278
(182.732) (12.584) - (195.316)
(182.454) 502.416 - 319.962
(80,139) 505,065 44,300 469,226
- 4,152 - 4,152
(2.219) (559) (32.414) (35.192)
(2.219) 3,593 (32.414) (31.040)
(82,358) 508,658 11,886 438,186
2.479.032 3.392.694 38.444 5,910,170
$_ 2396674 $_ 3901352 § 50,330 $__ 6.348.356
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Lane Council of Governments
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Loans received from USDA
Transfers

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bank loans
Interest paid on bank loans
Change in accrued interest

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Interest Receivable
Increase (decrease) in:
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Loan Total Nonmajor
Park Place Programs Funds Total

$§ 904,051 $ 255870 § 85,227 $§ 1,245,148
(680,307) (62,780) (47,616) (790,703)
(9.124) (155.677) (14.169) (178.970)

214.620 37.413 23.442 275.475

- 515,000 - 515,000
(2.219) 3.593 (32.414) (31.040)

(2.219) 518,593 (32.414) 483.960
(133,810) (109,200) - (243,010)
(182,732) (12,584) - (195,316)
(468) (388) - (856)
(317,010) (122.172) - (439.182)

278 - - 278

278 - - 278

(104,331) 433,834 (8,972) 320,531

901,701 1.699.559 38.847 2.640.107

$§_ 797370 §$_2.133393 § 29.875 $_2.960.638

$ 102,315 § 2,649 $ 44300 $ 149,264

371,842 - - 371,842
- 2,000 (22,079) (20,079)

- 19,291 - 19,291

123 1,388 405 1,916

3,924 5,778 132 9,834

- 14,344 - 14,344
(53,923) - 2,449 (51,474)
(42,317) - 671 (41,646)
(167,226) (6,134) (2,166) (175,526)
(118) (1.903) (270) (2.291)

$_ 214620 § 37413 § 23442 $_ 275475
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes consist of a summary of significant accounting policies and all additional information necessary for a fair
presentation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles



Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LCOG is a voluntary association of governmental entities in Lane County, Oregon. It is the designated
comprehensive planning and review agency for a number of federal and state programs. It also serves as the fiscal
agent for various federal and state programs carried out by member entities and serves as a coordinating agency for
local government long-range planning activities.

LCOG is not a component unit of any of its member organizations because no member organization appoints a
voting majority of LCOG’s board, the elected and appointed officials of member organizations are not financially
accountable for LCOG, and the relationship between LCOG and its individual member organizations is not
significant enough that its exclusion from their financial statements is misleading.

Authorized Investments

State statutes authorize LCOG to invest in general obligations of the U.S. government and its agencies, certain
bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, and the State of
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), among others.

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 295, requires deposits in excess of insured limits be deposited with
depositories that participate in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Oregon State
Treasury (OST). Each participating depository must provide collateral, generally equal to 10% of its uninsured
public funds deposits. The OST is responsible for monitoring compliance with the collateralization and reporting
requirements of ORS 295 and notifying local governments of compliance by financial institutions. No specific
collateral can be identified as security for any one public depositor, however all pool collateral is potentially
available if a participating depository is unable to satisfy claims.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all activities of LCOG. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by local and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on charges for
support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a specific function. Indirect expenses have
been allocated to the function receiving the benefit of the expense. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a
given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function. Other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues. For schedules that reference total revenues and expenditures, both program and general revenues and
expenses are included in the financial information.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.
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Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting and agency funds have no
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all the
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, within 90 days, subject to the following:

. Entitlements, shared revenues, and interest are recognized as revenue of the period to which they relate.

. Charges for services are recognized as revenue of the period in which the services are performed.

. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other grant requirements have been met.

. Other receipts are not considered measurable and available until cash is received.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, with certain exceptions.

Major differences between the modified accrual basis and the accrual basis are:

. Unmatured interest on long-term debt is not recognized until due.

. Capital outlay expenditures are recognized as expenditures when the assets are acquired (depreciation is
not recorded).

. Proceeds of long-term borrowing are recognized as an “other financing source” and principal paid is
considered an expenditure.

. Loan costs and loan discounts (premiums) are recognized as expenditures (income) when loans are taken
out.

LCOG has the following major governmental funds:

. General Fund — This is the general operating fund of LCOG, used to account for all revenues and
expenditures not properly accounted for in another fund. The major revenue sources are: dues paid by
member government agencies and repayment of a tenant improvement loan.

. Grants and Contracts — This fund accounts for programs or activities funded by federal, state, or local
grants or contracts.

LCOG has the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

° Park Place Building — This fund that records the financial activity of the LCOG-owned building. Income
from rents is the major source of revenue. Part of the fourth and the entire fifth floors of the building are
occupancy space - LCOG Government Services occupies part of the fourth floor and Administration,
Business Services, and Information Services occupies the fifth floor. The remaining space is lease/retail
space and is rented and/or available to rent.
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Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

. Loan Programs — Seven loan funds that finance business facilities and community development projects
in Lane County. LCOG administers five revolving loan funds — Intermediary Relending Program/Rural
Business Development Fund (RBDF); Economic Development Administration (EDA; EDA-2); Rural
Business Enterprise Grant (RBEG); and Rural Investment Board Grant (RIB). Funding for the RBDF and
RBEG was provided by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Funding for EDA and EDA-2 was provided
by the U.S. Department of Commerce (with a $500,000 local match by Lane County). Funding for the RIB
was provided by Oregon Cascades West Community and Economic Development Corporation. Note that
RBDF and EDA loans are considered Federal Awards and are subject to repayment of the loans (all other
revolving loan programs are grants and/or awards not subject to repayment). Also, in an effort to offer
Lane County businesses a comprehensive source of loan programs, LCOG has contracted with two
Certified Development Companies (CDC) to provide loan packaging services. Activities of these contracts
are reported in two loan program funds: Loan-Other Packaging fund and Loan-SBA504 fund. The Loan
Programs include a sub-fund for overall administration and program oversight. EDA-3 was the result of the
CARES Act, but does not require a local match.

Additionally, LCOG has the following fund types:

. Nonmajor enterprise fund - Minutes Recording — LCOG provides minutes recording services to a variety
of local entities. Services are provided through contracted help. Fund consists of fees charged and contract
expenses. Activities of this program are reported in the Minutes Recording fund.

. Nonmajor enterprise fund - Economic Development — This fund is devoted to economic development
services.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between LCOG’s enterprise funds and other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported. Amounts
reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources (transfers) are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include dues assessed to member agencies.

Proprietary (enterprise) funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of LCOG’s enterprise funds are rents, loan fees, and interest
on business loans. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of services, interest on loans from
the USDA, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is LCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first.
Cash and Investments

Cash and investments consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money market accounts, nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit, and investments in the State of Oregon Treasury Department’s Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP). LCOG reports all money market investments and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations at
cost, which approximates fair value.

The cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LCOG’s only investments at June 30, 2021, were funds deposited with the State of Oregon LGIP, which is part of
the Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a cash and investment pool available for use by all state funds
and eligible local governments. The LGIP is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio offered to eligible
participants who by law are made custodian of, or have control over, any public funds. The LCOG’s investment in
the LGIP is carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

The State of Oregon’s investment policies used in administering the LGIP is governed by statute and the Oregon
Investment Council (Council). The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the Council and is responsible for
the funds on deposit in the OSTF. The OSTF’s investments in short-term securities are limited by the portfolio
rules established by the OSTF Board and the Council. In accordance with Oregon statutes, the investment funds
are invested, and the investments of those funds managed, as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable
care, skill, and caution. The LGIP’s portfolio rules provide that broker/dealers meet certain qualifications and that
investments are delivered to and held by a third-party custodian which holds the securities in the State of Oregon’s
name.

Investments in the LGIP are included in the OSTF, which is an external investment pool that is not a 2a7-like
external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an
investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares owned.
The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share
price multiplied by the number of shares held. Investments in the OSTF are governed by ORS 294.135, the
Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the OSTF Board, which establish diversification percentages and
specify the types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as
well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. The fund appears to be in
compliance with all portfolio guidelines at June 30, 2021. The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share;
an investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency.
Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money
by investing in the pool. LCOG measures these investments at book value since it approximates fair value. The
pool is comprised of a variety of investments. These investments are valued as a level 2 fair value measurement in
the OSTF’s audited financial report.

As of June 30, 2021, the fair value of the position in the LGIP is 100.4% of the value of the pool shares as reported
in the OSTF audited financial statements. Amounts in the State Treasurer’s LGIP are not required to be
collateralized.

Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are developed based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the
best information available about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. The
classification of securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the
security type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows:

° Level 1 — unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that
each Fund has the ability to access.
° Level 2 — other observable inputs, These include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities in markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as
interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) and other
market—corroborated inputs.
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Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

. Level 3 — unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent
observable inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair
value of investments).

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in
Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such
cases, for disclosure purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Receivables

Receivables for federal and state grants and contracts are recorded as revenue in all fund types as earned.
Receivables in proprietary fund types for rent or services are recorded as revenue when earned. LCOG
management believes that any uncollectible amounts included in accounts and grants receivable are immaterial,
therefore no provision for uncollectible accounts has been made.

Loan Program Receivables and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable are stated at their unpaid principal balance, less an allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans is
recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the simple interest method on principal amounts
outstanding. If management believes collection of interest is doubtful, interest income is not accrued; uncollectible
interest previously accrued is charged to interest income and interest income is recognized only to the extent cash
is received. LCOG adjusts the value of its small business loan portfolio to approximate its fair value by use of an
allowance for loan losses. The allowance consists of an individual assessment of each loan of factors including:

. The borrower’s payment history,

. The borrower’s current economic condition,

° The availability and quality of collateral, and

. The existence and quality of guarantees by third parties.

Based on the above factors, each loan is rated to establish its degree of risk. An allowance is then established for
cach loan based on a percentage of the outstanding balance, reduced by the amount recoverable through collateral
or guarantees. The allowance is management’s best estimate of the amount collectible on outstanding loans. It is
possible that actual loan losses could materially differ from the estimate.

Prepaids

Certain costs such as building rents may be paid in advance of the period to which the payment relates. These
payments, to the extent not consumed at the end of the fiscal year, are recorded as an asset in the government-wide
and fund financial statements. These prepaid amounts are considered to be non-spendable fund balance as they are
not in spendable form.

Restricted Assets

Restricted net position as of June 30, 2021, totaled $9,545,784. LCOG classifies the following cash and
investments as restricted, committed or assigned as of June 30, 2021:

In the grants and contracts fun, all amounts are considered restricted for specific use. In the General Fund, the
Operations Reserve is restricted for emergencies and requires Board approval. In the Enterprise Fund - Park Place
Building, the Capital Contingency Account is reserved for preservation and maintenance on the building. .

26



Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

In-Kind Contributions

LCOG recognizes contribution revenue for certain services received at the estimated fair value of those services
when they create or enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills, which are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not donated. Contributed materials and
furniture and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, leasehold improvements, vehicles, furniture, and equipment are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by LCOG as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at actual cost. Donated capital assets and
similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value.
Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly
market transaction at the acquisition date, or the amount at which a liability could be liquidated with the
counterparty at the acquisition date. (LCOG has no donated assets). The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 7-40 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Office furniture 5-7 years
Kitchen equipment 4-10 years
Vehicles and other equipment 5-10 years
Software/intangibles 3-5 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, a separate section for deferred outflows of resources will sometimes be reported. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to liabilities, a separate section for deferred inflows of resources will sometimes be reported. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Costs
incurred to obtain or renew financing for long-term debt are being amortized using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize loan premiums and discounts, as well as loan
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences

LCOG employees accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits in accordance with applicable bargaining
agreements and agency policies. Employee vacation accrual is limited to 480 for all positions; actual maximum
payout liability for all positions is 320 hours for employees terminating service. Sick leave and holiday expense is
only recorded as expenditure when leave is taken. Earned but unpaid vacation benefits are recorded as a liability on
government-wide financial statement. No liability is accrued for proprietary funds as management considers the
amount to be immaterial. The liability for compensated absences is typically liquidated by the individual funds at
the time of occurrence (i.e. vacation being taken, upon retirement or resignation).

Net Pension Liability

LCOG reports its share of the net pension liability of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
A negative net pension liability is reported as a net pension asset. For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability or asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of OPERS and additions to/deductions from OPERS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Retirement Plan

All qualified LCOG employees are participants in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
Contributions to PERS are charged to expense/expenditures in the same period as the related payroll cost.

Other Post-employment Benefits

LCOG’s net Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) liability is recognized as a long-term liability in the
government-wide financial statements, the amount of which is actuarially determined.

Fund Balance

Fund balances, presented in the governmental fund financial statements, represent a resource for future periods that
is the difference between assets and liabilities reported in a governmental fund. Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition of those assets.

In the fund financial statements, the fund balance of governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to honor constraints imposed on the
specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. LCOG evaluated each of its funds at June 30,
2021, and classified fund balances into the following five categories:

Nonspendable - when resources cannot be spent because they are either in a nonspendable form or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Resources in nonspendable form include inventories, prepaids,
deposits, and assets held for resale.

Restricted — amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers or by enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Committed — amounts that have been committed by formal action by the Board of Directors. Committed amounts
may not be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes the constraint through Board motion.

Assigned — amounts that have been allocated by Board of Directors resolution adopting the budget with intent to
use the funds for a specific purpose. Assigned fund balance is established through adoption or revision of the
budget as intended for specific purpose.

Unassigned — This category includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above four categories. These are
amounts that have no restrictions on them in the general fund or any deficit fund balance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is LCOG’s policy to use restricted
resources first followed by committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance.

NOTE 2 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

In accordance with state law, budgets are adopted for all funds (except agency fund type) on a modified accrual
basis of accounting.

For budget purposes, interfund loans are budgeted as debt service and revenue in proprietary and governmental
funds, respectively; however, on a generally accepted accounting principles basis they are balance sheet
transactions for principal payments only.

In-kind contributions of professional services are not budgeted for or recorded on a budgetary basis; however,
these contribution transactions are accounted for on a generally accepted accounting principles basis.

Major differences between the budgetary basis and the accrual basis are:

. Interest is not recorded as an expenditure until the debt payment becomes due.

° Land, building, and equipment purchases are budgeted as an expenditure in the year of acquisition.

. No depreciation is budgeted.

. In the Loan Programs, principal paid on loans is budgeted as an expenditure and loan proceeds are
budgeted as revenue.

° In the Loan Programs, disbursements to borrowers are budgeted as expenditures and principal

received on loans is budgeted as revenue.

Expenditures are controlled by appropriations adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. Appropriations are
adopted at the broad object level of personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, and
special payments. These expenditure appropriations are adopted for purposes of accountability and as a method of
providing public involvement into the budget process as provided by ORS 294.905 through 294.930. There is no
legal requirement that expenditures do not exceed appropriations.

Appropriations lapse at the end of each year. The budget as originally adopted may be amended by the Board.
There was one such amendment authorized in FY21.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are
recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not used.
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NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

LCOG maintains a cash account that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed
on the Statement of Net Position as part of “cash and investments”.

Cash and investments at June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:

Cash with Fiscal Agent $ 53,796
Certificates of Deposit 475,110
Local Government Investment Pool 54,891
Demand Deposits 8,691,146
Money Market Accounts 3.841.377
Total Cash and Investments $_13.116.320

Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short Term Fund, which
is an external investment pool that is not a 2a7-like external investment pool and is not registered with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same
value as the number of pool shares owned. The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position
would be the fair value of the pool's share price multiplied by the number of shares held. Investments in the Short
Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the
Oregon Short Term Fund Board. The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP
is neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to
maintain the value of share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool.
The City intends to measure these investments at book value, as the LGIP's fair value approximates its amortized
cost basis.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. In
general the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the risk that the investment’s fair value will decline if
interest rates rise. In order to manage the interest rate risk of its investments, LCOG invests only in the Oregon
Short Term Fund, Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The LGIP has rules that require at least 50% of its
investments to mature within 93 days, not more than 25% may mature in 94-366 days, and all other investments
must mature in no more than three years. The audited financial statements of the Oregon Short Term Fund at June
30, 2021 disclose investment maturity by segmented time distribution as follows: 93 days or less (60%), 94 - 366
days (18%); and one to three years (22%).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation. The LGIP
is not rated for credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
LCOG will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000 at each financial institution. Deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage are held with
institutions participating in the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program. In the event of bank failure, the
entire pool of collateral pledged by all participating qualified depository institutions is available to repay deposits
of public funds of the government entities.
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Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction,
LCOG will not be able to recover the value of an investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside
party. Since LCOG’s investment in the LGIP is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry
form, LCOG is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

LCOG does not have a formalized custodial risk policy but has enacted procedure for oversight mitigation of such
risk. At June 30, 2021, the total amount of deposits with banks was $12,684,303 and the total in LGIP accounts
was $54,891.

During the year, all balances were fully insured or collateralized.
Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a large portion of investments with a single issuer. LCOG’s
assessment of potential loss due to concentrations is considered remote. Placement of a majority of cash with
major financial institutions believed to be creditworthy and the limitation of the total investments marginalizes this
risk.

NOTE 4 - LOAN PROGRAM RECEIVABLES

LCOG loans money to qualifying rural small businesses under its Intermediary Relending Program in cooperation
with the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Also, as the recipient of an award from the Economic Development
Administration, LCOG operates a Revolving Loan Fund to assist business enterprises and create jobs. Local funds
are also used to create small miscellaneous business loans.

LCOG considers a loan to be impaired when, based on current information, it is probable that all principal and
interest will not be collected according to the terms of the loan. When a loan becomes impaired, its related
allowance is adjusted so that the loan’s carrying value reflects the value of its collateral and the present value of
any expected cash flows. A restructured loan involving modification of terms is also treated as an impaired loan. In
the years after the restructuring, loans are not considered impaired unless the interest rate on the restructured loan
is less than the rate LCOG would have accepted on other loans with similar risks.

At June 30, 2021, LCOG’s loans receivable for the Loan Program funds consisted of loans originally funded for
no more than $200,000, interest ranging from 5.00% to 8.25%, principal and interest due monthly for periods up to
20 years, secured by real property, machinery, and equipment. Included in the below loans receivable are USDA
loans which are pledged as collateral. The collateralized loans have a carrying value of $1,295,392.

Total all loans outstanding (all programs) $ 3,078,323
Allowance for loan losses(all program) (125.833)
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses (all programs) 2,952,490
Less amount due within one year (279.927)
Long-term portion $_ 2,672,563
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Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-depreciable assets:

Fiber optics

Furniture & equipment
Leasehold improvements
Software

Vehicles

Total

Less accumulated depreciation:

Accumulated depreciation - Fiber

optics
Accumulated depreciation -
Furniture & equipment
Accumulated depreciation -
Leasehold improvements

Accumulated depreciation - Software
Accumulated depreciation - Vehicles

Total
Net capital assets

Business-type activities:
Non-depreciable assets:

Land & land improvements
Depreciable assets:

Buildings

Improvements
Total cost
Less accumulated depreciation:

Accumulated depreciation -
Buildings

Accumulated depreciation -
Improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

Net capital assets - entity-wide

Beginning of
year Additions Deletions End of year
$ 969.103 $_ 1.348.095 $_(2.317.198) $ -
10,458,596 633,600 - 11,092,196
2,311,665 1,683,598 - 3,995,263
156,704 12,179 - 168,883
492,065 - - 492,065
103.177 - - 103.177
13,522,207 2,329.377 - 15.851,584
2,614,650 522,930 - 3,137,580
996,943 146,551 - 1,143,494
132,624 3,442 - 136,066
437,406 59,076 - 496,482
103.177 - - 103.177
4.284.800 731,999 - 5.016.799
10.206.510 2.945.473 (2.317.198) _10.834.785
436,200 - - 436.200
5,918,899 - - 5,918,899
4.000,573 - - 4.000,573
9.919.472 - - 9.919.472
1,804,157 147,973 - 1,952,130
2,253,627 223.869 - 2,477.496
4.057.784 371,842 - 4.429.626
6,297,888 (371.842) - 5,926,046

$_16,504.398 §_ 2.573.631 $_(2.317.198) $_16.760.831
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following activities as of June 30, 2021:

Activity Amount

Governmental activities:

Board/Executive $ 6,533

Government Services 701,641

Senior and Disability Services 23.825
Total 731,999
Business-type activities:

Park Place Building 371,842
Total $_ 1,103,841

NOTE 6 - LONG -TERM DEBT

The following schedule shows the debt service requirements for loan debt categorized by activity: governmental-
type activity is loan debt that is the financial obligation of the General Fund; business-type activity is loan debt that
is the financial obligation of the Enterprise Funds.

June 30, 2021

Activity and Loan Type Balance
Business-type activities:
Building loan $ 4,232,093
Business loan 1,186,716
Total $ 5,418,809

There is no loan debt for government activities at June 30, 2021. Business activities building loan debt is
transacted in the Enterprise Fund for building loan debt on the Park Place Building. This debt is liquidated by the
Park Place Building Fund.

LCOG opened a Business Line of Credit in the amount of $100,000 with Banner Bank on February 13, 2018, with
an interest rate of 6.250%. During the year ended June 30, 2021, no amounts were disbursed from this line of
credit.

Business loans debt are loans made to Lane Council of Governments from USDA for rural small businesses loan
support in Lane County. Business activities are transacted in the Enterprise Fund - Loan Program — Intermediary
Relending Program. These loans are liquidated by the Loan Programs Fund.
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What follows is the detail of loans payable debt outstanding at June 30, 2021, by activity and by specific loan.

Business activities — Building loans

$4,825,000 Banner Bank loan (direct borrowing); dated June 16, 2016; monthly
principal and interest payments of $26,382 (annual payments of $316,584) with final
balloon payment of $3,466,346 due July 1, 2026; interest rate of 4.25% per annum
through and including June 30, 2023. Commencing July 1, 2023, through the
remainder of the Note Term, interest shall accrue on the unpaid principal of this Note
at a fixed interest rate equal to the then current Federal Home Loan Bank three year
advance rate (the “Index”) plus three hundred twenty-five basis points (3.25%);
provided, that in no event shall the interest rate accruing on the note be less than 4.25%
(the “Floor Rate™). This note is secured by real property, building fixtures, and the
pledge of future income from tenant rents. In the event of default, the loan may
become due and payable in full, the lender may also raise the interest rate to 20%.

Business activities — Business Loans

$1,000,000 USDA loan (direct borrowing); dated May 21, 1998; annual principal and
interest payments of $42,450 through May 2027 and $42,220 due May 2028; interest
rate of 1.00%; secured by the rights to and revenues of LCOG's Intermediary Relending
Program revolving fund, and all chattel paper, accounts receivable, contract rights,
general intangibles, gross receipts, income, and revenue derived therefrom. In the event
of default, the loan may become due and payable in full.

$478,000 USDA loan (direct borrowing); dated October 11, 2000; annual principal and
interest payments of $20,292 through October 2029 and $20,118 due October 2030;
interest rate of 1.00%; secured by the rights to and revenues of LCOG's Intermediary
Relending Program revolving fund, and all chattel paper, accounts receivable, contract
rights, general intangibles, gross receipts, income, and revenue derived therefrom. In
the event of default, the loan may become due and payable in full.

$400,000 USDA loan (direct borrowing); dated July 30, 2001; annual principal and
interest payments of $16,980 through July 2030 and $16,828 due July 2031; interest
rate of 1.00%; secured by the rights to and revenues of LCOG's Intermediary Relending
Program revolving fund, and all chattel paper, accounts receivable, contract rights,
general intangibles, gross receipts, income, and revenue derived therefrom. In the event
of default, the loan may become due and payable in full.

$500,000 USDA loan (direct borrowing); dated August 22, 2002; annual principal and
interest payments of $21,225 through August 2031 and $21,028 due August 2032;
interest rate of 1.00%; secured by the rights to and revenues of LCOG's Intermediary
Relending Program revolving fund, and all chattel paper, accounts receivable, contract
rights, general intangibles, gross receipts, income, and revenue derived therefrom. In
the event of default, the loan may become due and payable in full.
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NOTE 6 - LONG -TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

$500,000 USDA loan (direct borrowing); dated June 29, 2006; annual principal and
interest payments of $21,225 through June 2035 and $21,101 due June 2036 ; interest
rate of 1.00%; secured by the rights to and revenues of LCOG's Intermediary Relending
Program revolving fund, and all chattel paper, accounts receivable, contract rights,
general intangibles, gross receipts, income, and revenue derived therefrom. In the event

of default, the loan may become due and payable in full. 294.689
Total loan debt for business activities (building and business loans) 5,418,809
Less amounts due within one year (249.919)
Loan Debt, net of current maturities — Business Activities (principal only) $ 5,168.890

The following schedule shows the debt service requirements for loans payable as of June 30, 2021:

Business-Type Activities

Building Loans Business Loans Total Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2022 § 139,609 § 176,794 § 110,310 $§ 12,053 $ 249919 $ 188,847
2023 145,659 170,923 111,220 10,952 256,879 181,875
2024 151,972 164,611 112,333 9,839 264,305 174,450
2025 158,558 158,025 113,456 8,716 272,014 166,741
2026 165,430 151,153 114,640 7,582 280,070 158,735
2027 - 2031 3,470,865 12,277 460,889 21,770 3,931,754 34,047
2032 -2036 163.868 4.526 163.868 4.526

Total $4232,093 §__833.783 §$ _1.186.716 $__ 75438 §__ 5.418.809 § 909,221

Total interest paid for the year ended June 30, 2021 for Business-Type Activities $ 195,731

The Interfund Receivables, Payables, Advances and Transfers Note has information regarding interfund advances
and payables.

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Due within
Beginning Additions  Reductions Ending one year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences $_ 983280 $_1,068.561 $_(884,952) $_1,166.889 $_1.050,200
Business-Type Activities:
Loans Payable:
Building loan 4,365,903 - (133,810) 4,232,093 139,609
Business loan 1,295.916 - (109,200) _1.186.716 110,310
Total loans payable 5,661,819 - (243,010) 5,418,809 249919
Deposits 36.062 - - 36,062 -
Total - Business-Type Activities $ 5697881 $ - $_(243.010) $5.454.871 $__249.919
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the year are referred to as “interfund receivables/payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances”.

Interfund Advances

On May 12, 2012, per Resolution 2012-03, LCOG General Fund made an advance of $418,000 to the Enterprise
Fund - Park Place Building. The purpose of this advance was to fund tenant improvements to the Park Place
Building third floor. Amounts are repaid annually on or before August 15 of each fiscal year.

Interfund loan activity and balances for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Current
of year Additions Payments  End of year Portion
Park Place Building Fund
Due to LCOG General Fund $__ 85483 $ - $_ (42317) $__ 43,166 $__ 43.166

Interfund Transfers

Funds are transferred from one fund (transfers out) to support expenditures of other funds (transfers in) in
accordance with the authority established for the individual fund. For the year ending June 30, 2021 transfers were
as follows:

Transfers in:

Grants and Park Place
Transfers out: General Fund Contracts Building Loan Program Total
General Fund $ - 8 699 $ - 8 - 8 699
Park Place Building - 240 - 1,979 2,219
Loan Program - 559 - - 559
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 30,000 240 - 2.174 32.414
$ 30.000 $ 1,738 § - 8 4,153 § 35.891

NOTE 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated Absences consists of the estimated vacation liability LCOG would be expected to pay out should
employees of record all terminate at or on June 30, 2021. The basis of the value of the liability is the LCOG policy
for vacation payout. LCOG employees accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits in accordance with applicable
bargaining agreements and agency policies. Employee vacation accrual is limited to 480 for all positions; actual
maximum payout liability for all positions is 320 hours for employees terminating service. Sick leave and holiday
expense is only recorded as expenditure when leave is taken.

LCOG determines the reasonable value of individual employee vacation balances in June of each fiscal year. Based
on the ending value, LCOG would increase or decrease the liability for the fiscal year. The net liability increased
from $983,280 at June 30, 2020 to $1,166,889 at June 30, 2021. This change was the result of new accruals
totaling $1,068,561 and the use of $884,952 of the total amount available during the year ended June 30, 2021. Of
the 66 managerial funds, the funds where the employee usually charges their time is used to liquidate the
compensated absence due the employee upon use or termination; the General Fund and the Grants and Contracts
Fund are the major governmental funds used to liquidate compensated absences.
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required; certain costs may be questioned as not
being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Any unforeseen disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds.

NOTE 10 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net investment in capital assets as presented in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2021 is determined as
follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation $ 10,834,785
Less outstanding principal on capital related debt -

Governmental Activities net investment in capital assets $_10.834.785

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation $ 5,926,046
Less outstanding principal on capital related debt - mortgage loan (4.232.093)
Business-Type Activities net investment in capital assets $__1.693.953

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Deferred compensation plans are available to employees wherein they may execute an individual agreement with
LCOG for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when circumstances are met. These deferred
compensation plans are ones which are authorized under Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and have been
approved in their specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of the plan are held by
the administrators of the plans for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or
liabilities of LCOG.

Two outside agencies currently collect, manage, and operate LCOG’s deferred compensation program: Oregon
Savings and Growth Plan (OSGP), and International City Managers Association (ICMA). The estimated total
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Employer contributions $§ 194,510
Employee contributions 369.874
Total $§__ 564.384

NOTE 12 - OPERATING LEASES
Real Estate Rentals

Leases that constitute real estate rental agreements are classified as operating expenses. Real estate rental
agreements are cancelable arrangements. Below are the real estate leases for LCOG as of June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 12 - OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lane County Public Sve Bldg: LCOG leases 930 square feet of space for the MetroTV program from Lane
County (office is located at Lane County Public Service Building in Eugene, OR). For the year ending June 30,
2021, the lease required monthly payments of $1,200 for a total of $14,400 for the year ending June 30, 2021.

Senior Meals - Central Kitchen: LCOG leases 4,172 square feet of space for Senior Meals meal preparation from
Lulu, Inc. (office is located at 1407 Cross Street, Eugene, OR). For the year ending June 30, 2021, the lease
required monthly payments of $2,900 for a total of $34,800.

Title XIX sites: LCOG leases space in downtown Eugene for Senior & Disability Services at $42,995 per month
for a total of $515,940 for the year ending June 30, 2021; LCOG also leases a site at 3180 Hwy 101, Florence,
Oregon for Senior & Disability Services at a cost of $4,619 per month (July 2020 - March 2021) and $4706 (April
2021 - June 2021) for a total of $55,689 for the year ending June 30, 2021; LCOG entered a lease agreement for
space in Cottage Grove, OR at a cost of $174 per month (July 2020 - August 2020) and $450 (September 2020 -
June 2021), for a total of $4,848 for the year ending June 30, 2021.

Senior Meals — Nutrition/Outreach: LCOG has various nutrition and outreach sites for the Senior Meals
program. The majority of the agreements for these sites call for monthly rental payments for a total cost of
$36,984 for the year ending June 30, 2021. The remaining sites are donated to LCOG, or are reimbursed by LCOG
for operating expenses not considered to be rent.

Senior Connections: LCOG rents space from Mid Lane Cares and the City of Oakridge for the Senior
Connections program at an annual cost of $8,429 for the year ending June 30, 2021. In addition, LCOG shares
space with the Title XIX and Type B staff at Florence, OR and Creswell, OR.

Park Place Building(*): LCOG occupies space in the Park Place Building for LCOG administration and
government services at a total occupancy cost of $398,083 for the year ending June 30, 2021.

Total rental expense LCOG paid on these real estate rental leases for the year ending June 30, 2021, was
$1,069,173.

(*) This is a building that is owned by Lane Council of Governments - occupancy costs are reflected.
Equipment Leases

Leases that constitute equipment rental agreements are classified as operating expenses. Equipment rental
agreements represent copiers for office use. Below are the equipment operating leases for LCOG as of June 30,
2021.

Indirect — Canon IR C5560: Lease agreement calls for a $262 payment on a monthly basis for a total cost of
$3,147 for the year ending June 30, 2021.

Government Services — Canon IR 6575i: Lease agreement calls for a $246 payment on a monthly basis for a total
cost of $2,952 for the year ending June 30, 2021.

Total copier expense LCOG paid on these copier leases, excluding maintenance and supplies, for the year ending
June 30, 2021 was $6,099.

Telecommunications - Fiber Optic Lines: LCOG leases fiber optic lines to support it's telecommunications
services. These agreements call for monthly payments at a total of $89,400 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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At June 30, 2021, the approximate future minimum rental commitments under real estate operating leases,
including occupancy costs and the approximate future minimum rental commitments under equipment operating
leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s) Ended June 30, Real Estate Equipment

2022 $ 639,509 $ 52,499
2023 629,923 2,476
2024 642,263 -
2025 96,123 -
2026 95,261 -
2027 - 2031 46,521 -
Total $ 2.149.600 $ 54,975

NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT

LCOG reports its risk management activities in its General Fund. LCOG purchases commercial insurance from
independent third parties and participates in the City/County Insurance Services Trust (CIS) - a liability risk
sharing pool for general and automobile liability and workers’ compensation. CIS was established in 1981 by the
League of Oregon Cities (LOC) and the Association of Oregon Counties (AOC) to provide risk management
services including insurance and loss control to member entities. CIS is a governmental entity and works
exclusively for the benefit of Oregon cities and counties. CIS’s primary objective is to aggregate the collective
buying power of its members to reduce and stabilize the cost of funding those risks. The pool insures members up
to a pre-set limit.

Member rates are set based on experience and LCOG is potentially liable for a pro rata share of pool losses or
eligible for a pro rata share of pool net income. In the event that a single loss or series of losses should exceed the
amount of protection afforded by the pool or other insurance carried by CIS, then payment of losses is the
obligation of the individual member against whom the claim was made. Premiums paid into the pool are
recognized as expenditures when paid. The amount of any future claims or refunds cannot be ascertained. During
the last three years, settled claims from all risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage. LCOG also
maintains excess cyber liability coverage of $4,800,000 due to LCOG's operation of its own network.

Workers compensation insurance was purchased under a retrospective rate plan with the final cost depending on
the claims.

In addition, LCOG is self-insured for unemployment claims as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows:

2021 2020
Unpaid claims at beginning of year $ - 8 1,000
Incurred claims 59,880 20,102
Claims paid (59.880) (21.102)
Unpaid claims at end of year $ - 3 -
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A - Name of Pension Plan. LCOG is a participating employer in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Oregon Legislature has delegated
authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board to administer and manage the system. All benefits of the
System are established by the legislature pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement
Benefit plan, established by ORS Chapter 238, is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. The
Pension Program, established by ORS Chapter 238A, provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29,
2003. PERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that can be obtained at obtained
at http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financialreports/financials.aspx.

B - Plan Description/Description of Benefit Terms

Plan Benefits. All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute
(ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.

1 - Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit Plan (ORS Chapter 238)

a. - Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13
retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic
benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage is multiplied by the number of years
of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for
members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefit
results.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement
allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of
age before ceasing employment with a participating employer. General service employees may retire after
reaching age 55. Tier One employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30
years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined
Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

b. - Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the
member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a
lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following
conditions are met:

* the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,

* the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,

* the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or

* the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

c. - Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from
other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-
incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless
of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is
computed to age 58 when determining the monthly benefit.
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d. - Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities
investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market
value equity investments.

Monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. In fiscal year 2021, the cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA) for PERS benefit recipients receiving a monthly benefit was effective July 1, 2020, and
was a part of the August 1, 2020 benefit payment.

The COLA amount, up to 2 percent each year, is based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Portland,
Oregon area. Administratively, there are two relevant time periods for COLA:

. Service time before October 1, 2013: 2.0 percent maximum COLA for service time before this date; the 2.0
percent annual cap is tied to the Portland Consumer Price Index (CPI).

. Service time on or after October 1, 2013: two-tiered COLA; 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of an annual
benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefit over $60,000.

2 - Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A)

a. - Pension Benefits. The OPSRP Pension Program provides benefits a defined benefit to members hired on or
after August 29, 2003. The OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.

General Service benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement
age: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal retirement
age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the
member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal
retirement age, and, if the Pension Program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

b. - Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally
required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would
otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.

c. - Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member
becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit
of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability
occurred.

d. - Benefit Changes After Retirement. Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through
cost-of-living changes. Under current law, there are two relevant time periods for COLA:

. Service time before October 1, 2013: 2.0 percent maximum COLA for service time before this date; the 2.0
percent annual cap is tied to the Portland Consumer Price Index (CPI).

. Service time on or after October 1, 2013: two-tiered COLA; 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of an annual
benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefit over $60,000.
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3 - Individual Account Program (IAP)

a. - Historical. In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for
PERS. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) is effective for all new employees hired on or after
August 29, 2003. The new plan consists of the defined benefit pension plan and a defined contribution plan (the
Individual Account Program or IAP). Beginning January 1, 2004, all Tier One/Tier Two member contributions
go into the IAP. PERS’ members retain their existing PERS member accounts, but any future member
contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP, not the member’s PERS Tier One/Tier Two account.
Members of PERS and OPSRP are required to contribute six percent of their salary covered under the plan in to
the IAP. LCOG makes this contribution on behalf of its employees.

b. - Benefits. An [AP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date
the rollover account is established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the
member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of
service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is
terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or
her employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal
installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a
$200 minimum distribution limit.

c. - Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the
member’s account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account
balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive
the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

d. - Recordkeeping. PERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records.

e. - Target-Date Funds. IAP accounts are invested in customized target-date funds that are designed for
Oregon public employees. This approach maintains the objective of the IAP program to achieve the highest
total returns, while incurring an appropriate level of risk in addition to recognizing that risk levels should vary
based on age. Money in a member’s IAP is invested in a target-date fund that is chosen based on the member’s
year of birth. For example, if a member was born between 1973 and 1977, they will be in the IAP 2040 Target-
Date Fund. Investments in each fund will adjust over time to reduce investment risk and potential losses in
market downturns.

C - Contributions. PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other
Postemployment Benefit Plans.

Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation. The rates
based on a percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2019. LCOG’s actuarially determined contribution
rate for the Tier One/Tier Two and OPSRP plans was 25.48 percent and 18.77 percent of subject payroll,
respectively. Employer contributions recognized by PERS for the year ended June 30, 2021, were $2,879,967.

In addition, all PERS members must make a member contribution in the amount of 6% of covered salary. These
member contributions go into the IAP. LCOG makes the 6% IAP member contribution on behalf of its employees
which totaled approximately $863,246 in FY21.
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D - Pension Assets, Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2020, LCOG reported a net pension liability of $27,546,414 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. LCOG’s proportion of the net pension liability measured as of June
30, 2020, and the total pension liability was based on a projection of LCOG’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2020, LCOG’s proportion was 0.12622398 percent, which was changed from its proportion measured as
of June 30, 2019 of 0.12499561 percent. The General Fund and the Grants and Contract Fund are the major
governmental funds used to liquidate the net pension liability.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Deferred Deferred

Outflow of Inflow of

Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 1,212,375 $ -
Changes of assumptions 1,478,329 (51,798)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments 3,239,100 -
Changes in proportionate share 718,121 (154,497)

Differences between employer contributions and employer's

proportionate share of system contributions 128.461 (1.214.554)
Total (prior to post-MD contributions) 6,776,386 (1,420,849)
Contributions subsequent to MD 3.537.617 -
Total $_10.314.003 $_(1.420.849)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $3,537,617 resulting from LCOG's contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as either a reduction of the net pension liability or an increase in the
net pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2022. Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources of $5,355,537 will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Amortization

Period

2022 $ 1,278,468
2023 1,695,248
2024 1,473,904
2025 943,081
2026 (35.164)
Total $__5.355.537

E - Actuarial Assumptions. The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, were
set using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS
Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal
cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year),
(2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 years.
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For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer
contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits
carned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities
being amortized over 16 years.

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date December 31, 2018

Measurement Date June 30, 2020

Experience Study Report 2018, published July 24, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age normal

Amortization Method Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered

amortization bases over a closed period; Tier One/Tier
Two UAL is amortized over 20 years and OPSRP
pension UAL is amortized over 16 years

Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation Rate 2.5%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 7.2%
Discount Rate 7.2%
Project Salary Increases 3.5% overall payroll growth; salaries for individuals

are assumed to grow 3.5% plus assumed rates of
merit/longevity increases based on service

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) Blend of 2.00% COLA and grade COLA
(1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision;
blend based on service.

Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: Pub-2010 Healthy
retiree, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and
set-backs as described in the valuation.

Active Members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex-distinct,
generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale,
with job category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation..

Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disable Retiree, sex-
distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security
Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-
backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies
are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based
on the 2018 Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 2018.
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F - Long-Term Expected Rate of Return. To develop an analytical basis for the PERS Board’s selection of the
investment return assumption, PERS actuary, Milliman, used long-term assumptions developed by Milliman’s
capital market assumptions team for each of the asset classes in which the plan is invested based on the Oregon
Investment Council’s (OIC) long-term target asset allocation. Since the OIC uses broader asset classes than those
for which Milliman’s investment actuaries develop long-term return assumptions, Milliman used the OIC’s
description of each asset class to map it to the classes shown below. For example, the OIC’s allocation to
“alternatives” was distributed among hedge funds, real estate, and commodities based on the detail available. Each
asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, including the inflation assumption.
These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market
economic model. Based on the target allocation and investment return assumptions for each of the asset classes, the
model’s 50th percentile output is developed as follows:

Compounded

Annual

Target Return

Asset Class Allocation (Geometric)
Global Equity 30.62 % 585 %
Private Equity 25.50 % 7.71 %
Core Fixed Income 23.75 % 2.73 %
Real Estate 12.25 % 5.66 %
Master Limited Partnerships 0.75 % 571 %
Infrastructure 1.50 % 6.26 %
Commodities 0.63 % 3.10 %
Hedge Fund of Funds - Multistrategy 1.25 % 511 %
Hedge Fund Equity - Hedge 0.63 % 531 %
Hedge Fund - Macro 5.62 % 5.06 %
US Cash (2.50)% 1.76 %
Total 100.00 %

Assumed Inflation - mean 2.40 %

For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation and long-term expected rate of return for
ecach major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic and geometric means see PERS’ audited financial
statements at: https://www.oregon.gov/pers/pages/financials/actuarial-financial-information.aspx

G - Depletion Date Projection. GASB 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the
Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost
Method). The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that
the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year
high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is
not projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB
68 will often require that the actuary perform complex projections of future benefit payments and pension plan
investments. GASB 68 (paragraph 67) does allow for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such
evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method for making an alternative
evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for PERS:
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. PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which
is articulated in the actuarial valuation report.
. The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full

ADC each year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if
future experience follows assumption.

. GASB 68 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the
assumed rate return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and
assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience which
might impact the plan’s funded position.

Based on these circumstances, it is our independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections
outlined in GASB 68 would clearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected to be sufficient to
cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.

H - Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined
Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

I - Sensitivity of LCOG's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate.
The following presents LCOG's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated using the
discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what LCOG's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or one percentage-
point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability ~ $§_40,904.150 §$_27.546.414 $_16.345.333
(Asset)

J - Changes in Assumptions and Other Inputs. Changes in actuarial methods and assumptions since the
December 31, 2016 valuation are described in the 2018 Experience Study at
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Exp Study 2018.pdf

Changes in assumptions from that Study are reported in the table of actuarial methods and assumptions,
modifications to the allocation of actuarial accrued liabilities, administrative expense assumptions, healthcare cost
inflation, and mortality tables can be found at:
http://www.oregon.gov/PERS/Pages/Financials/ActuarialPresentationsandReports.aspx.

NOTE 15 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for LCOG consists of an implicit rate subsidy for retiree health
insurance premiums.
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Financial Statement Presentation

At June 30, 2021, LCOG reported a total OPEB liability of $456,483. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB were also reported and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Deferred

Outflow of Inflow of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions or inputs $ 22,223 $ (7,060)
Differences between expected and actual experience 16.435 (22.426)
Total (prior to post-MD contributions) 38,658 (29,486)
Contributions subsequent to MD 41.183 -
Total $ 79.841 $ (29.486)

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB of $41,183 resulting from LCOG’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense for the years ended June 30, as follows:

Year ended Amount
2022 $ (3,054)
2023 (1,624)
2024 3,267
2025 7,522
2026 3.061

Total $ 9.172
Plan Description

LCOG’s single-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan is administered by City County
Insurance Services. Benefit provisions are established through negotiations between LCOG and representatives of
collective bargaining units or through resolutions passed by the LCOG Board. No assets are accumulated in a trust
that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.

Benefits Provided

The plan provides eligible retirees and their dependents under age 65 the same health care coverage at the same
premium rates as offered to active employees. The retiree is responsible for the premiums. As of the valuation date
of July 1, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive beneficiaries or employees receiving benefits 4
Active employees 84
Total 88
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Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

LCOG’s total OPEB liability of $456,483 at June 30, 2021 was calculated using a measurement date of June 30,
2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020. The General Fund and the Grants and
Contract Fund are the major governmental funds used to liquidate the net OPEB liability.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, LCOG recognized a reduction in OPEB expense from this plan of $7,427
due to changes in the OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows as compared to the prior year.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2020 valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial method Entry age normal

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases 3.5%

Healthy mortality Pub-2010 General and Safety Employee and Healthy retiree tables, sex distinct for

members and dependents, with a one-year setback fro male general service employees
and female safety employees.

Discount rate 3.5 percent

Health care cost trend rate Medical and vision 3.75 percent per year increasing to 4.00 percent (changed from 6.75
percent per year decreasing to 4.75 percent)

The discount rate was based on Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index published by The Bond
Buyer.

The change in the total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at beginning of year $ 415,456
Changes for the year:
Service cost 21,965
Interest on total OPEB liability 14,800
Effect of economic/demographic gains or
losses 20,087
Effects of assumption changes or inputs 13,579
Benefit payments (29.404)
Balance at end of year §___456.483
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability

The following presents LCOG’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

Discount rate

1% decrease 1% increase
(2.5%) 3.5% (4.5%)
Discount rate $ 486,386 $ 456,483 $ 427,769

Health care cost trends $ 410,716 $ 456,483 $ 510,522
NOTE 16 — BUILDING - PARK PLACE

Total income consists of rental revenue and occupancy revenue. Rental Income is charged to agencies renting
available retail space in owned buildings. Such rents are considered third party activity. LCOG distinguishes any
rent charged on space that is administrative space as occupancy revenue.

Occupancy space is identified as the fourth and fifth floors and part of the garden level of the Park Place Building
totaling 17,780 square feet (17,107 fourth and fifth floors; 673 WIX). All other space is retail space. Retail space is
the garden level, first, second, third, and fourth floors of the Park Place Building. At year ending June 30, 2021,
there were 16 retail and office tenants with various lease terms and expiration dates, with lease amounts ranging
from approximately $505 to $10,935 per month. The estimated rental income for FY21 was $555,967 from third
party tenants, and $398,083 from LCOG occupancy for a total of $954,050.

NOTE 17 - INDIRECT CHARGES (OVERHEAD)

Indirect costs are budgeted and actual costs are allocated and recovered from all applicable grants, contracts, and
agreements based on a negotiated fixed rate percentage applied to the sum of actual direct labor and fringe costs
incurred. The annual budget and the calculations of the fixed rate percentage are reviewed, negotiated, and
approved annually by LCOG’s designated cognizant agency - the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT).

The Indirect Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) is prepared and submitted to ODOT in accordance with procedures of
the Office of Management and Budget, 2 CFR Part 225, Cost Principles for State and Local, and Indian Tribal
Governments (OMB Circular A-87). Rates are negotiated by LCOG and ODOT according to the authority
contained in Appendix C, Section D.2 of 2 CFR Part 225.

Rates approved by ODOT in effect July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Government Services, Transportation,

Planning & Loan Programs 30.800 %
Senior and Disability Services 11.238 %
Business Services 28.061 %
Government Services 16.434 %
Communications (Metro TV) 15.977 %
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Indirect costs are excluded in the consolidation of the government-wide statements and all other accompanying
financial statements. (Internal charges are not excluded — interfund services provided by and used between services
is noted in all financial statements. For more detail on transfers, see Interfund Receivables, Payables, Advances
and Transfers Note.

Indirect recovered $ 3,507,487
Indirect cost incurred for the year ended June 30, 2021 (3.151,397)

Over recovered indirect costs $ 356.090
NOTE 18 — CONSOLIDATION OF SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Prior to fiscal year 2021, LCOG reported a major governmental special revenue fund for telecommunication
activities. This fund was consolidated with the grants and contracts major governmental special revenue fund
during fiscal year 2021. At June 30, 2020, the fund balance of the telecommunications fund and the grants and
contracts fund was $652,149 and $8,611,235, respectively. The consolidated balance presented as opening fund
balance for the grants and contracts fund at July 1, 2020 is $9,263,384. This consolidation was affected to align the
financial statement reporting with LCOG's organizational budgeting and internal reporting policies and practices.

NOTE 19 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (Issued 6/2017)

This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows
of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model
for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying
asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease
asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. This statement is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application is encouraged.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Schedule of Pension Contributions
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB liability and Related Ratios

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:
. General Fund
. Special Revenue Funds - Grants and Contracts

Budgetary Basis: The basis of budgeting for all major funds is consistent with the modified accrual basis, except
that transactions related interfund advances are budgeted as revenues and expenditures for the year in which the
cash flow occurs.



Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2021

Oregon Public Employees Retirement System

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Proportion of the net pension
liability or asset 0.1262 % 0.1250 % 0.1215 % 0.1151 % 0.1226 % 0.1116 % 0.1268 % 0.1268 %
Proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) $ 27,546,414 $ 21,621,247 $ 18,401,958 $ 15512393 $ 18,408,381 $ 6406247 $ 2874427 $ 6471313

Covered payroll $13,731,096 $ 12,278,948 $ 11,043,502 $ 10,176,173 $ 9,559,449 $ 8,826,685 $ 8,838,698 $ 7,961,173

Proportionate share of the
pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered
payroll 200.61 % 176.08 % 166.63 % 152.44 % 192.57 % 72.58 % 32.52 % 81.29 %

Plan net position as a
percentage of the total

pension liability 75.8 % 80.2 % 82.1 % 83.1 % 80.5 % 91.9 % 103.6 % 92.0 %

10-year trend information required by GASB Statement 68, as amended, will be presented prospectively

51



Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of Pension Contributions
June 30, 2021

Oregon Public Employees Retirement System

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required

contribution $ 2,879,967 $ 2,589454 $ 1,914,899 $ 1,833219 $ 1,454,150 $ 1,322,647 $ 1,122,589 $ 994,089
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required

contribution 2.879.967 2.589.454 1,914.899 1,833.219 1,454.150 1,322.647 1,122.589 994.089
Contribution deficiency

(excess) $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
Covered payroll $ 14,605,728 $ 13,731,096 $ 12,278,948 $ 11,043,502 $ 10,176,173 $ 9,559,449 $ 8,826,685 $ 8,838,698
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 19.72 % 18.86 % 15.59 % 16.60 % 14.29 % 13.84 % 12.72 % 11.25 %

10-year trend information required by GASB Statement 68, as amended, will be presented prospectively

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Note I - Measurement Period
Amounts presented are for the measurement period reported during the fiscal year, which for FY21 is July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020.
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Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020 2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year $ 415456 $ 387,432  $ 407,502 $ 422,431
Services cost 21,965 19,580 27,758 29,477
Interest on total OPEB liability 14,800 15,399 15,166 12,416
Effects of economic/demographic gains or

losses 20,087 - (47,341) -
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 13,579 11,421 7,813 (24,040)
Benefit payments (29.404) (18.376) (23.466) (32.782)
Balance at end of year $ 456483 $_ 415456 $__ 387432 $__ 407.502
Covered payroll $ 13,731,096 $ 12,278,948 $ 11,043,502 $ 10,176,173
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of

covered payroll 332 % 3.38% 3.51 % (0.32)%

10-year trend information required by GASB Statement 75 will be presented prospectively

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Note I - Measurement Period

Amounts presented are for the measurement period reported during the fiscal year, which for FY21 is July 1, 2019
- June 30, 2020.
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Lane Council of Governments
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Member dues $ 220,000 $ 232977 $§ 232977 § -
Other local sources 53.344 137.354 91.855 (45.499)
Total revenues 273.344 370,331 324,832 (45.499)
Expenditures:
Personnel services 218,570 304,690 260,027 44,663
Materials and services 128.046 150,832 152,013 (1.181)
Total expenditures 346.616 455.522 412.040 43.482
Revenues over (under) expenditures (73.272) (85.191) (87.208) (2,017)
Other financing sources and uses:
Transfers in 13,000 43,000 34,244 (8,756)
Transfers out (14.500) (28.542) (4.943) 23.599
Total other financing sources and uses (1.500) 14.458 29.301 14,843
Change in fund balance (74,772) (70,733) (57,907) 12,826
Fund balance, beginning of year 378.549 473.303 436,204 (37.099)
Fund balance, end of year $ 303,777 % 402,570 378,297 $ (24.273)
Reconciliation to GAAP fund balance
The Indirect Central Services fund is not a
budgeted fund. Activity in this fund is
consolidated with the Grants and Contracts
Fund for financial reporting 426,970
Advances to other funds are recognized as a
budgetary expenditure when disbursed, but as
an asset on the modified accrual basis. 43.166
GAAP fund balance, end of year $_ 848.433
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Lane Council of Governments
Special Revenue Fund - Grants and Contracts
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Revenues:
Federal and state grants and contracts
Local sources

Total resources

Expenditures:

Government Services:
Personnel services
Support services
Materials and services
Services by other organizations

Government services sub-total

Senior and disability services:
Personnel services
Support services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Services by other organizations

Senior and disability services sub-total
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources and uses:

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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Adopted Revised

Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ 29,863,930 §$ 29,313,347 $ 27,735,498 $ (1,577,849)
7.429.507 7,516,398 7,508,972 (7.426)
37.293.437 36.829.745 35.244.470 (1.585.275)
3,695,404 3,656,269 3,496,742 159,527
1,075,076 1,083,288 1,083,288 -
1,579,622 1,629,069 1,460,192 168,877
2.822.215 2.719.108 2.631,327 87,781
9.172.317 9.087.734 8,671,549 416.185
21,146,394 21,118,634 18,921,195 2,197,439
2,376,487 2,373,387 2,376,546 (3,159)
3,563,834 3,412,677 3,576,278 (163,601)
24,000 19,000 - 19,000
1,231,504 1,340,657 1,186,449 154,208
28.342.219 28.264.355 26.060.468 2.203.887
37.514.536 37.352.089 34,732,017 2,620,072
(221.099) (522.344) 512.453 1,034,797
4,104,863 4,210,181 3,939,716 (270,465)
(4.102.764) (4.192.866) (3.937.977) 254,889
2.099 17.315 1,739 (15,576)
(219,000) (505,029) 514,192 1,019,221
6,001,012 9,273,521 9.263.385 (10,136)
$_ 5782012 $_ 8,768,492 $_ 9.777.577 $_ 1,009,085




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Statement of Net Position - Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:
. Enterprise Funds

Schedules of Resources and Requirements - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis):

. All Organizational Units

. General Fund

. Government Services

. Senior and Disability Services
. Enterprise Funds

Intermediary Relending Program:
. Statement of Net Position
° Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expense
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Due to other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related

liabilities

Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

Total net position

Lane Council of Governments
Combining Statement of Net Position

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2021

Minutes Economic
Recording  Development Total
$ -3 29,875 $ 29.875
41,991 32,500 74,491
28 - 28
42.019 62.375 104,394
671 - 671
2,676 26,097 28,773
245 - 245
- 24.375 24.375
3.592 50.472 54.064
38.427 11,903 50,330
$ 38427 $ 11,903 $ 50,330
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Lane Council of

Governments

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues
Charges for services and rent
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Materials and services
Total operating expenses

Operating income
Transfers out
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Minutes Economic
Recording  Development Total

§___77.126 $ 30,048 $__107.174
77.126 30,048 107.174
4,355 9,544 13,899
45.531 3.444 48.975
49.886 12.988 62.874
27,240 17,060 44,300
(30.000) (2.414) (32.414)
(2,760) 14,646 11,886
41.187 (2.743) 38.444

$_ 38427 § 11,903 §___50.330

57



Lane Council of Governments

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in:
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Minutes Economic  Total Nonmajor
Recording  Development Funds

$ 54,156 $ 31,071 § 85,227

(45,557) (2,059) (47,616)

(4.382) (9.787) (14.169)

4217 19.225 23.442

(30,000) (2.414) (32.414)

(30,000) (2.414) (32.414)

(25,783) 16,811 (8,972)

25.783 13.064 38.847

$ - $ 29875 § 29.875

$ 27,240 § 17,060 § 44,300

(23,058) 979 (22,079)

108 297 405

88 44 132

- 2,449 2,449

671 - 671

(805) (1,361) (2,166)

(27) (243) (270)

S___4217 S__19005 S___ 2344

58



Lane Council of Governments
Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues
Federal and state grants and contracts $ - § 590,000 § 515,000 $ (75,000)
Local sources 1.481.844 1,720,710 1.881,594 160,884
Total resources 1,481,844 2,310,710 2,396,594 85,884
Expenditures
Loan program
Personnel services 159,357 165,672 153,774 11,898
Support services 44,715 45,317 41,539 3,778
Materials and services 36,330 35,196 16,495 18,701
Services by other organizations 576,000 607,000 572,000 35,000
Debt service 122,500 122,500 122,172 328
Loan program sub-total 938.902 975.685 905.980 69.705
Building program
Personnel services 5,020 7,741 9,006 (1,265)
Support services 1,409 2,060 2,060 -
Materials and services 427,484 512,695 468,827 43,868
Capital outlay - 30,000 - 30,000
Debt service 359.327 359.226 359.327 101)
Building program sub-total 793.240 911.722 839.220 72.502
Economic Development and Minutes Recording
programs
Personnel services 17,107 11,017 13,899 (2,882)
Support services 4,538 3,245 3,245 -
Materials and services 63.654 47.610 45.729 1.881
Economic Development and Minutes
Recording programs sub-total 85.299 61.872 62.873 (1.001)
Total expenditures 1.817.441 1.949.279 1.808.073 141.206
Revenues over (under) expenditures (335.597) 361,431 588,521 227,090
Other financing sources and uses
Transfers in 35,346 89,153 74,491 (14,662)
Transfers out (35.945) (120.926) (105.530) 15.396
Total other financing sources and uses (599) (31.773) (31.039) 734
Change in fund balance (336,196) 329,658 557,482 227,824
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,569.709 3.209.355 2,339,575 (869.780)
Fund balance, end of year $_ 2233513 §_ 3.539.013 $_ 2.897.057 $__ (641.956)
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Lane Council of Governments
All Organizational Units
Schedule of Resources and Requirements

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Resources:
Federal and state revenue $ 29,863,930 $ 29,903,347 §$ 28,250,498 $ (1,652,849)
Local revenue 8,964,695 9,374,462 9,482,423 107,961
Local revenue - member dues 220,000 232,977 232,977 -
Transfers in 4,153,209 4,342,334 4,048,451 (293,883)
Beginning reserves 8,949.270 12.956.179 12.039.164 (917.015)
Total resources $ 52,151,104 $_56.809,299 $ 54,053,513 $_(2.755.786)
Requirements:
Personnel services 27,307,523 27,392,403 22,854,644 4,537,759
Support services - - 3,506,678 (3,506,678)
Materials and services 7,235,524 7,166,996 5,719,535 1,447,461
Capital outlay 24,000 49,000 - 49,000
Services by other organizations 4,629,719 4,666,765 4,389,776 276,989
Debt service 481,827 481,726 481,499 227
Transfers out 4,153,209 4,342,334 4,048,450 293,884
Ending reserves 8.319.302 12,710,075 13.052.931 (342.856)
Total requirements $ 52,151,104 $_56.809,299 $ 54,053,513 $_ 2,755,786
Reserves by fund:
General fund $ 378,297
Special revenue funds 9,777,577
Enterprise funds 2.897.057
Reserves as of year end $_13.052.931
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Lane Council of Governments
General Fund
Schedule of Resources and Requirements

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Resources:
Member agency dues $ 220,000 $ 232977 $§ 232977 $ -
Other local sources 52,217 136,227 90,876 (45,351)
Interest income 1,127 1,127 979 (148)
Transfers in 13,000 43,000 34,244 (8,756)
Beginning reserves 378.549 473.303 436,204 (37.099)
Total resources $ 664,893 §$ 886,634 $ 795,280 $ (91.354)
Requirements:
Personnel services 218,570 304,690 260,027 44,663
Materials and services 128,046 150,832 152,013 (1,181)
Transfers out 14,500 28,542 4,943 23,599
Ending reserves 303.777 402,570 378.297 24.273
Total requirements $ 664,893 §$ 886.634 $ 795,280 $ 91,354
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Lane Council of Governments
Government Services
Schedule of Resources and Requirements

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Resources:
Federal and state grants and contracts $ 4227933 § 4,175,515 $ 2,588,058 $ (1,587,457)
Other local sources 6,058,752 5,933,409 6,099,046 165,637
Rental and in-kind income 55,000 66,000 83,172 17,172
Transfers in 968,177 1,250,665 897,542 (353,123)
Beginning reserves 1,359,438 1,576,447 1,566,312 (10,135)
Total resources $ 12669300 $_13.002,036 $_ 11,234,130 $_(1.767.906)
Requirements:
Personnel services 3,695,404 3,656,269 3,496,742 159,527
Support services 1,075,076 1,083,288 1,083,288 -
Materials and services 1,579,622 1,629,069 1,460,192 168,877
Services by other organizations 2,822,215 2,719,108 2,631,327 87,781
Transfers out 966,078 1,233,350 895,803 337,547
Ending reserves 2.530.905 2.680.952 1.666.778 1.014.174
Total requirements $ 12669300 $_13.002,036 $_ 11,234,130 $_ 1.767.906
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Lane Council of Governments
Senior and Disability Services
Schedule of Resources and Requirements

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Resources:
Federal and state grants and contracts $ 25,635,997 $ 25,137,832 $ 25,147,440 $ 9,608
Other local sources 1,312,355 1,515,789 1,326,040 (189,749)
Interest income 3,400 1,200 714 (486)
Transfers in 3,136,686 2,959,516 3,042,174 82,658
Beginning reserves 4.641.574 7.697.074 7.697.073 1)
Total resources $_34,730.,012 $ 37311411 $ 37213441 $ (97.970)
Requirements:
Personnel services 21,146,394 21,118,634 18,921,195 2,197,439
Support services 2,376,487 2,373,387 2,376,546 (3,159)
Materials and services 3,563,834 3,412,677 3,576,278 (163,601)
Capital outlay 24,000 19,000 - 19,000
Services by other organizations 1,231,504 1,340,657 1,186,449 154,208
Transfers out 3,136,686 2,959,516 3,042,174 (82,658)
Ending reserves 3,251,107 6.087.540 8,110,799 (2,023.259)
Total requirements $ 34,730,012 $_37.311.411 $ 37213441 $ 97.970
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Lane Council of Governments
Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Resources and Requirements

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Adopted Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Resources:
Federal and state grants and contracts $ - § 590,000 § 515,000 $ (75,000)
Charges for services and rents 1,481,544 1,716,178 1,876,613 160,435
Interest income 300 4,532 4,983 451
Transfers in 35,346 89,153 74,491 (14,662)
Beginning reserves 2,569.709 3.209.355 2,339,575 (869.780)
Total resources $ 4086899 $_ 5609218 $_ 4810662 $  (798.556)
Requirements:
Personnel services 181,484 184,430 176,680 7,750
Support services 50,662 50,622 46,844 3,778
Materials and services 527,468 595,501 531,052 64,449
Capital outlay - 30,000 - 30,000
Services by other organizations 576,000 607,000 572,000 35,000
Debt service 481,827 481,726 481,499 227
Transfers out 35,945 120,926 105,530 15,396
Ending reserves 2.233.513 3.539.013 2.897.057 641,956
Total requirements $_ 4086899 $_  5.609.218 $_ 4810662 $ 798.556
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Lane Council of Governments
Statement of Net Position
Intermediary Relending Program

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Current maturities of loans receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expense

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Loans receivable, net of current maturities and allowance

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Current maturities of loans payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted by USDA

Total net position
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§ 1,378,802
113,116
4,405

178

1.496.501

935.868
2.432.369

1,047
2,647
5,354
110,310

119,358

1.076.406
1.076.406
1.195.764

1.236.605
§_1.236.605



Lane Council of Governments
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Intermediary Relending Program
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Operating revenues

Loan interest revenue $ 82,140
Loan fees revenue 894
Total operating revenues 83.034

Operating expenses:

Personal services 47,587
Materials and services 16,190
Total operating expenses 63.777
Operating loss 19,257
Nonoperating revenues
Interest income 3,193
Interest expense (12.584)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9,391)
Loss before transfers 9,866
Transfers out (12.762)
Change in net position (2,896)
Net position, beginning of year 1.239.501
Net position, end of year $_1.236,605
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Lane Council of Governments

Net Position by Components
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2010-2019

This part of LCOG’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about LCOG’s overall financial health. It is intended to provide users
with a broad and more complete understanding of LCOG and its financial affairs than is possible from
only the financial statements and supporting schedules. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical
section information is not subject to independent audit.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 68 - 77
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how LCOG’’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Position by Components

Change in Net Position, by Activity

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Net Capital Assets by Activity

Revenue Capacity 78 - 79
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess LCOG’s Governmental revenue sources,
including Member Dues.

Revenue by Source — Governmental Funds
Member Dues

Debt Capacity 80
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of LCOG’s current level of
outstanding debt.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt

Demographic and Economic Information 81 - 83
These schedules help the reader understand the environment within which LCOG’’s financial activities
take place.

Total Population by Jurisdiction

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Full Time Employee Equivalents for Each Fiscal Year
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Lane Council of Governments

Net Position by Components
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2012+ 2013%* 2014** 2015%* 2016%*

Governmental activities

et investment in capital assets 5 2142997 (a) $ 449 951 % 420.167 5 10707658 (d) $ 10229273

Restricted 3,008,472 2512187 3,753,886 3,988,719 0,226,339

Unrestricted (3.280.763) (1.490.168) (b) (6.810.666) (c) (4.961.031) (7.393.685)
Total governmential activities net position 1,871,706 1.471.970 (2,636,613) 11,735,346 9.062,147

Business-type activities

Net investment in capital assets 970,905 (a) 825246 662237 2025428 2025069
Restricted 1,273.170 (a) 2,389,938 3,061,538 2.989.626 3,005,526
Unrestricted 1,227,176 - - - 285,148
Total business-type activites net position 3471251 3,215,184 3,723,775 5015054 5,315,743

Primary government

Net invesiment in capital assets 3,113,502 1.275.197 1.082.404 12,733,086 12,254,342
Restricted 4282642 4902.125 6.815.424 8.978.345 9,232,085
Unrestricted (2,053.587) (1.490,168) (6.810.666) (4.961,031) (7.108.537)
Total primary government net position $ 5342957 (a) $ 4687154 (b) S 1.087.162 (c) $ 16750400 (d) $  14.377.890 (e)

** These vear end balances include prior period adjustments as follows:

(a) 53342937 net position is restated, 53 380,787 mitms prior period adjustments of 537,830 and 51,692 342 reclassification across activities(net zero change).
(b) 34,687,154 net position is restated, 54,968,409 minus prior period adjustment of 3281.235 for unrecorded costs.
() 51,087,162 net position is restated, 56,564,377 minus prior period adjustments of 53,386,604 for pension Hability, 580,321 for costs not recorded and
fund transferred to new catezory 54,003,
(d) 516,730,400 net position 1s restated, 3348,926 plus prior period adjustments of 511,201,474, Major fiber optics project was completed and capitalized .
(2} 514377890 net position is restated, 514,435,721 mitms prior period adjustments of (577,831).
(f) 511,484 267 net position is restated, 511,795 387 minus prior peniod adjustments of (5314,120) due primarnly to first year implementation of GASE 73 reporting.
(=) 58,743,262 net position is restated, 58,490,606 plus prior period adjustment of 5232,636
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Lane Council of Governments

Net Position by Components, Continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 2018** 2019 2020%* 2021

Governmental activities

Net investment in capital assefs 3 10,016,507 3 10,049,072 5 0867313 5 10,206,510 5 10,834,785

Restricted 4.521,548 5,633,688 5,788,354 8,862,116 0,545,784

Unrestricted (7.986.671) (10212.617) (12.050.417) (16.235.534) (19.146.048)
Total govermnental activities net position 6,551,384 5470143 3.605.280 2.833.092 1.234.521

Business-type activities

Net investment in capital assefs 1,869,243 1,750,373 1,558,617 1,931,985 1,693,953
Restricted 3,254 889 2.240.672 - -
Unrestricted 435650 2.023.081 4228 904 3978185 4 654403
Total business-type activites net position 5,599 782 6.014.126 5.787.521 5.910.170 6,348 356

Primary government

Net investment in capital assets 11.885.750 11.799.445 11,425,930 12,138,495 12,528,738
Restricted 7.816.437 7.874.360 5,788,384 8.862.116 9.545.784
Unrestricted (7.551,021) (8,189.538) (7.821,513) (12,257.349) (14,491,645)
Total primary government net position $ 12151166 $ 11484267 () $ 9,392,801 $ 8743262 () § 7,582,877

** These vear end balances include prior period adjustments as follows:

(a) 53,342,957 net position is restated, 53,380,787 mitus prior period adjustments of 537,830 and 51,692,342 reclassification across activities(net zero change).
(b} 54,687,134 net position is restated, 54,968 409 minus prior period adjustment of 5281 233 for unrecorded costs.
(c) 51,087,162 net position is restated, 56,364,377 mmnus prior period adjustments of 33,386,694 for pension hiability, 520,321 for costs not recorded and
fund transferred to new category 54,003,
(d) 516,730,400 net position is restated, 5345926 plus prior period adjustments of 511201 474, Major fiber optics project was completed and capitalized .
(e} 514377890 net position is restated, 514,435,721 minus prior period adjustments of (377.831).
(f) 511,484,287 net position is restated, 511,798 387 minus prior period adjustments of (3314,120) due primarnily to first vear implementation of GASE 73 reporting.
(=) 58,743,262 net position is restated, 58,490,606 plus prior period adjustment of 5232636
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Lane Council of Governments

Changes in Net Position, by Activity
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Total
Governmental Business-Type Change in Net Change
Activities Activities Net Position from Prior Year
FYl2 (927.072) 1,396,521 469 449 31,485
FY13 (118.481) (256,067) (374,548) (843.997) (a)
FYl4 (4.108.583) 508,591 (3.599.992) (3.225.444) ()
FY15 14,371,959 1,291,279 15,663,238 19.263.230 (2
FYlo (2.673.199) 300,689 (2.372.510) (18.035.748) (&
FY17 (2.510,763) 284.041 (2,226.722) 145788 (d)
FY18 (767.121) 431,743 (335.378) 1851344 (&)
FY19 (1.864.861) (226.605) (2,088.945) (1,753,367} (&)
FY20 (1.024.844) 375,305 (649.539) 1435406 (e)f)
FY2l (1.598.571) 438,186 (1,160.385) (510,846} (e)

Total change in net position then is the marginal change in year to year equity balances.

(@) Includes building additions and building improvements (Park Place Building)

(b): Business-type activities includes net sale proceeds from Schaefers Building (seld 6/27/14) and prior period adjustments of

(53,386.604) and (590,321); transfer of fund 54,403 to new catepory.

(e): Net change from prior yvear includes prior peried adjustments of $11.2 million in capital outlay.

(d): Net change from prior year includes prior peried adjustment of (377.831).

(2): Net change from prior vear includes includes deferred inflow and outflows of PERS pension and ether post-employment
benefits liability.

(f): Net change from prior year includes prior period adjustment of 5232636
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Lane Council of Governments

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

Activity
EXPENSES
Governmental activities
Board/executive
Government Services
Senior and diszbled services
Interest on long-term debt
Busmess-type activities
Washington Mutual Building
Park Place Building
Springfield Building
Schaefers Building
Loan program
Business services
Total Expenses
REVENUES
Governmental activities
Operating grants and contributions
Board/executive
Government Services
Senior and disability services
Charges for services
Board/executive
Government Services
Senior and disabled services
Busmess-type activities
Operating grants and contributions
Loan program
Charges for services
Washington Mutual Building
Park Place Building
Springfield Building
Schaefers Building
Loan program
Minutes Recording
Economic Development
Busienss Services
Total Revenues
NET EXPENSE (REVENUE)
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total Net Expense

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

$ 462594 § 178135 § 367978 § 481450 5  3.833.110
11,936,489 8,937,325 6,311,321 7,939,200 5,812,658
13,072,160 13783793 14900572 12,781,146 25,148,879
24,043 67.947 66,072 - 25,645
1.164.945 1157348 1.196.976 993,618 1028278
247,902 255269 241,689 213455 136,051
360,312 284984 240916 4075 -
494026 473,694 388,712 325,557 266,620
55156 65.467 52218 117,009 180,484
27,817,627 25,203,962 23,766,454 22,856,210 36,431,725
8,568,716 6328256 4,072,961 985344 1,229,439
10664575 11305728 12621471 17,898,351 27,152,785
114,137 311,072 913,163 100,760 44063
3,082,496 2361.194 2,797,142 320,720 454724
2476599 2.450.180 2,543,886 5,825,753 1,131,366

- - - - 110,000

511,080 937,263 976,354 1,018,686 997,920
345,688 253,634 234,066 266,262 182,890
377,145 206,071 206,087 - -
307,729 287,804 282,036 302,738 383,522
76.579 71.817 66.842 58.842 90.723

- - - - 31134
26,924,744 24,513,026 24,714,008  26,777.456 31,809,466
(588.763) (210.763)  1.302.680 3928432 (4.807.014)
(304.120) (480.173) (355.126) (7.186) 192,546

S (892,883) S (690,936)

S 047,554 § 3,021,246

S (4,614,468)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental activities
Unrestricted investment earnings
Member dues
Other
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Loans made (to Park Place Building)
Transfers

Business-type activities
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Loans made (to Park Place Building)
Tenant Improvement expenses
Capital Contributions

Special Items - Transfer of Assets

Transfers

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total Change in Net Position

Net posttion. beginning of vear. previously reported

Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total net position, beginning of vear
Prior period adjustments
Governmental acitivities
Business - type activities
Total prior period adjustments
Wet position, end of year
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total NET POSITION, end of year

3 - 5 - 8 - % - % 4,504
233,848 195.879 196,361 197.825 206,671
- - - 195,611

(7.960) - - - 1,638,361
(418.000) - - 40.768 -
53235 (103.597) (129.006) (36,768) 94728
235376 166,605 420,291 230,307 5,080

- (46,096) 413,402 71,617 -

418,000 - - - -

- - (14,896) - -

- - (85.489) - -

- - - - 269,563
(53.235) 103,597 129.007 36.768 (94,728)
461,264 316,388 020,670 540,517 2,310,790
(727.640) (118481) 1370035 4130257 (2.667.139)
296,021 (256.067) 507,188 331,507 372.460
(431.619) (374548) 1877223 4461764 (2.294679)
044,634 1,871,706 1471,970 (2.636.613) 11,735,346
4,867,772 3,471,251 215,184 3,723,775 5,015,054
5,812,406 5,342,957 4,687,154 1,087,162 16,750,400
1,654,712 (281255)  (5472.812) 10,241,702 (6.060)
(1,692,542) - - 959,772 (71,771)
(37.830) (281.255)  (5.472.812) 11201474 (77.831)
1,871,706 1471970 (2.636.613) 11,735,346 9,062,147
3,471,251 3,215,184 3,723,775 5,015,054 5,315,743

S 5,342,957 S 4,687.154

$1,087.162 S 16,750,400

S 14,377,800

NOTE: This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and incorporating prior period adjustments.
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Lane Council of Governments

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, Continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Activity 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
EXPENSES
Governmental activities
Board/executive 3 569856 § 752469 % 629931 § 823264 § 670,263
Government Services 6.523.490 6.936.685 7310,521 8.045.146 8485363
Senior and disabled services 21438033 21.071.830 23497390 27508312 28.357.062

Interest on long-term debt - - -
Business-type activities

Washington Mutual Building - - -

Park Place Building 950,775 964361 1,024,742 998,585 1,034.467

Springfield Building - - -

Schaefers Building - - -

Loan program 269827 217,000 238,770 182444 224392

Business services 83.770 74393 93879 78598 62874
Total Expenses 290,835,751 30,016,758 32,795,233 37,636,349 38,834,421
REVENUES

Governmental activities

Operating grants and contributions
Board/executive - - - -
Government Services 1.542.754 1.723.601 1,775,801 2.246.667

Senior and disability services 18.266.081 20.407.300 21,025,348 25.836.672

Charges for services
Board/executive 46,686 44.102 52,097 71.167 83.172
Government Services 4.888.069 4.929.934 5218592 5,935,009 6,418,275
Senior and disabled services 1.061.060 1.070.148 1,132,808 1,302,807 1.408.890

Business-type activities
Operating grants and contributions

Loan program 175.000 31.000 - - 515.000
Charges for services
‘Washington Mutual Building - - -
Park Place Building 912423 907.337 915,670 1,022,967 954.050
Springfield Building - - -
Schaefers Building - - -
Loan program 381.885 209129 213,807 212,866 209,752
Minutes Recording 84510 82,031 101,600 §2.384 77.126
Economic Development 34,742 30,513 33.104 32.500 30,048
Busienss Services - - -
Total Revenues 27,393,210 20,435,095 30,468,827 36,743,039 37,431,812
NET EXPENSE (REVENUE)
Governmental activities 2.726,727) (585.919) (2,233,196) (984.400) (1,866,852)
Business-type activities 284,188 4.256 (93.210) 91,090 464,243
Total Net Expense S  (2,442539) S (381,663) S (2,326,406) S (893,310) 8 (1,402,609)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities

Unrestricted mvestment earnings $ 2930 § 4859 § 5653 § 264§ 264
Member dues 211,946 215,700 221298 231,203 232977
Other - - -

Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets - - -

Loans made (to Park Place Building) - - -

Transfers 1,088 (401.763) 143,905 (275.911) 31.040
Business-type activities

Unrestricted mvestment earnings 941 8.325 10,510 8304 4,983

Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets - - -

Loans made (to Park Place Building) - - -

Tenant Improvement expenses - - -

Capital Contributions - - -

Special Items - Transfer of Assets - - -

Transfers (1.088) 401763 (143.905) 275911 (31.040)
Total General Revenues 215,817 228,884 237,461 243,771 242,224
Change in Net Position

Governmental activities (2.510,763) (767.123) (1.862.340) (1.024.844) (1.598.571)

Business-type activities 284,039 414344 (226,603) 375303 438,186

Total Change in Net Position (2.226.724) (352.779) (2.088,945) (649.539) (1.160.385)
Net position. beginning of year, previously reported
Governmental activities 9,062,147 6.551.384 5470141 3,605,280 2,833,092
Business-type activities 5315743 5,599,782 6.014.126 5,787,521 5,910,170
Total net position, beginning of vear 14,377,890 12,151,166 11,484,267 9,392,801 8,743,262
Prior period adjustments - - 252,656 -
Governmental acitivities (314.120) - - -
Business - type activities - - - - -
Total prior period adjustments - (314.120) - 252,656 -
Net position. end of year
Governmental activities 6.551.384 5470141 3.607.801 2.833.002 1.234.521
Business-type activities 5,589,782 6.014.126 5.787.521 5,910,170 6,348,356
Total NET POSITION, end of year § 12,151,166 § 11,484,267 § 9,395322 § 8,743,262 § 7,582,877

NOTE: This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and incorporating prior period adjustments.
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Fiscal vear ending June 30,

General Fund
Non spendable
Prepaid expenditures
Adwvances to other funds
Loan to Consortium
Committed
Unassigned
Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds

Non spendable
Telecommumications
Grants and confracts

Restricted for:
Telecommunications
Grants and contracts
Other

Assigned:
Telecommumications

Unassigned

Total of all other governmental funds

Lane Council of Governments

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

3 46351 3§ 36533 % 7.843 5290 % 17.655
418.000 418,000 333.730 293,931 361154
(227.252) 51,045 504461 611,132 86.721

3 237139 % 505578 % 392,034 910,353 § 465,530
4 - 5 - 3 10,063 10360 % 16,321
- - 5.720 49,093 369.868

1,861,227 1,582,507 2,050,770 1872710 1,436,908
1148245 929681 1,691,736 2441211 2985105

- - - 268523

3 3.009472 % 25121838 % 3,758,289 4373374 § 5076725

This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and does not include subsequent prior period adjustments.

Certain items have been reclassified to conform with current accounting principles.
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Lane Council of Governments

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, Continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Fiscal vear ending June 30, 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

General Fund

Non spendable
Prepaid expenditures 5 25262 % - 3 - 3 18325 § 9566
Adwvances to other funds 211,175 169,486 127,589 85,483 43,166
Loan to Consortiwm - - -
Committed 597,154 - 337,154 287.000 273777
Unassigned 141,122 419,869 259,290 201,760 521,924
Total General Fund 5 974713 § 589355 % 724033 §% 592568 % 848433
All Other Governmental Funds
Non spendable
Telecommunications 5 13297 § 4434 § 6333 § 20086 % -
Grants and coniracts 331,353 482,718 368,671 372,183 231,794
Restricted for:
Telecommumications 1,611,308 1.364.915 702,630 623,064 -
Grants and confracts 2910240 4263773 5085754 8239052 9545 784
Other
Assigned:
Telecommumications 121.868 - -
Unassigned - - - -
Total of all other governmental funds 5 4983066 % 6,120840 § 6,163,388 § 9263385 § 97771578

This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and does not include subsequent prior period adjustments.
Certain items have been reclassified to conform with current accounting principles.
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Fiscal vear ending June 30,

Revenues
Member agency dues
Federal and state grants and contracts
Other local sources
Rental and In-Kind Income
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Board/executive services
Government services
Telecommunications
Sentor and disabled services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Financing costs
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).
Sale of capital assets
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a % of noncapital expenditures

This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and does not include subsequent prior period adjustments.

Lane Council of Governments

Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 233848 § 195879 § 196361 $ 197825 § 206,671
18,968,748 17,378,504 16,586,244 15,376,937 19,932,496
5,783,840 5,122,453 6.254.191 10,890,234 7.464.581

264,543 255481 108,188 77.620 79.298

25.250.979 22952317 23.144.984 26.542.616 27.683.046

463,946 178,631 366.691 336,584 505,384

10.801.801 7.923.595 4833.042 4040448 3.376.298
1,169,583 1,038,591 1456207 1,773,838 1821258
13,110,375 13,822,135 14,848,465 19.501.427 21273267

207.073 32.813 34,688 36.674 1.129.073

24,043 67.947 66,072 64,086 25,645

43221 13.854 - 142,783

25,820,042 23,077.566 21,605,165 25,753,057 28,273.708
(569.063) (125249) 1.539.819 789.559 (590.662)

1.369.161

2279.135 2.504.752 2.947.650 3.929.427 3.078.081
(2,643.901) (2,608,349) (3.076,656) (3.866,553) (2,983,354)
(364.766) (103.597) (129.006) 62.874 1.463.888

5 (933.829) § (228.846) § 1410813 $ 852433 § 873226
0.90% 0.44% 0.47% 0.39% 4.28%

Certain items have been reclassified to conform with current accounting principles.
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Lane Council of Governments

Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds, Continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Fiscal vear ending June 30, 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues
Member agency dues 5 211946 % 215700 % 218778 % 231203 % 232977
Federal and state grants and contracts 19327141 2213050 22 801,149 28083339 27735499
Other local sources 6,198,676 6,004,941 6,357,053 7.261,861 7,831,429
Rental and In-Kind Income 324,157 44,102 52,097 68,970 83,172
Total revermes 26,061,920 28,395 644 29429077 35,645,373 35,883,077
Expenditures
Current:
Board/executive services 465,498 610,227 416,590 442 069 412 040
Government services 4204936 4651416 4445128 5,332,707 8,671,548
Telecommunications 1458717 1,514,708 1846483 2458770 -
Senior and disabled services 19,763,542 19,881,175 21,965,442 24,381,044 26,060,469
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Financing costs - -
Capital outlay 448 067 758,425 555,147 36476 -
Total expenditures 26.340,760 27415951 29228.7%0 32.651.066 35144 057
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures (278,840) 979,693 200,286 2.994 307 739,020

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - - - -
Transfers In 42416 227994 934313 130,418 31,738

Transfers Out (41.329) (629.757) (790.408) (406.329) (699)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,087 (401,763) 143,903 (275,911) 31,039
Net change in fund balances 5 (277.753) % 577930 % 344191 % 271839 3 770,059
Debi service as a % of noncapital expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

This information was obtained from prior audited financial statements and does not include subsequent prior period adjustments.
Certain items have been reclassified to conform with current accounting principles.
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Lane Council of Governments

Net Capital Assets by Activity
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Governmental Business-Type Total Net Capital Net Change

Activities Activities Assets from Prior Year
FYl2 488285 10,363,860 10,852,145 223108 (=)
FY13 449 680 0920744 10,370,424 (481.721)
FYl4 420,166 9.403_ 463 9823629 (546,795)
FY15 137,081 7.848.220 7985301 (1,838.328) (a).(b)
FYlo 10229273 6,895,445 17,124,718 9139417 (a)e)
FY17 10,031,332 6,599,622 16,630,954 (493.764) (=)
FY18 10,049,071 6,362,913 16,411,984 (218._9?[}) (d)
FY19 9,867,313 6,049,849 15,917,162 (494._82%) (e}
FY20 10,206,510 6.297.888 16,504,398 587.236 D
Fy2l 10,834,785 5,926,046 16,760,831 256433 (@
Average 5 4,167220 5 6,344 412 5 10,511,632 $ 528813

This schedule details the changes to LCOG's Capital Assets by activity. For example, in FY14 capital assets
declined by 5346,793 from the prior vear. The change is the fund net of additions, deletions or removals from assets,
and accomulated depreciation (governmental) and accumulated amortization (business-type). Amounts are rounded.
(a) Includes a correction to historical book aszet valus.

(t) Reflects the removal of Schaefers Building, sold 627/14, from LCOG assets.

() Reflects the removal of Springfield Building, s0ld12/11/13, from LCOG assets and ETOP Fiber 510,438,305 .
(d) Reflects equipment additions.

(2) Reflects telephone system replacement equipment additions.

(f)) Reflects Downtown Fiber Project Construction in Progress

(£)) Reflects Completion of Downtown Fiber Project Construction
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Lane Council of Governments

Revenue by Source - Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Federal and State Local Member In Kind Total Revenues

Revenue Revenue Dues Revenue Governmental Funds
FY12 18,968,748 5,783,839 233,848 264,543 25250978
FY13 17378504 5,122,453 195,879 255481 22952317
FYl4 16,586,244 6,254,190 196,361 108,188 23,144.982
FY15 17.444.690 8.822.481 197,825 77,620 26,542,616
FY16 19,932 496 10,201,600 206,671 79298 30,420,065
FY17 19327141 6,198.676 211,946 324157 26,061,920
FY18 22,130,501 6,004,941 215,700 44,102 28,395,644
FY19 22,801,149 6,357,053 218778 52,087 2%.429.077
FY20 28083339 7.261.861 231,203 68,970 35,645,373
FY21 27735499 7.831.429 232977 83,172 35,883,077
Average 5 21038871 5 6,983 852 5 214119 5 135,763 5 28372 605

Above schedule is for governmental funds onlv, not LCOG as a whole. Governmental Funds are: General Fund and Special Revenue

Funds (excludes enterprise funds). Special Revenue Funds consist of Governmental Services and Senior & Disability Services and excludes:
reserves; mternal charges matched by mternal revenues; and miernal transiers. Fluctuations m total revenues 1s not mdicative ot ongomg mereased
nmaimng. LChanges 1 grants and contracts mmdmg as well as one mwne revenues will create IucTuatons 1 anmal revenues.
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Lane Council of Governments

Member Dues
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Member Agency FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16* FY17* FY18* FY19+ FY20+* FY21*
Bethel School District 52 5 646 S 559§ 558§ 573 0§ 1000 § 1000 § 1000 S 500 S 510§ 640

City of Coburg 510 410 410 410 1000 1,000 1000 1,500 1020 1,000
City of Cottage Grove 1463 3.823 3.823 3.832 3.008 3.930 3.936 3.068 4142 4198
City of Creswell 2277 1,967 1,967 1,957 1996 2,050 2,144 2,164 2,258 2281
City of Dunes City 268 512 512 512 522 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,020 557
City of Eugene 74,187 61,629 61,620 62,020 63,334 63360 66,354 67.112 70,254 70,881
City of Florence 4,507 3,323 3,323 3,323 3,388 3,448 3472 3,498 3.641 3.664
City of Tunction City 2,663 2,136 2,136 2,136 2178 2,348 2404 2430 2,336 2554
City of Lowell 189 410 410 414 500 500 500 500 510 1000
City of Oakridge 1770 1,257 1257 1,259 1,284 1,296 1,302 1,208 1,358 1,368
City of Springfield 27.330 23417 23417 23473 23936 24,034 24,036 24262 25,198 25401
City of Veneta 2,366 1,808 1,808 1,808 1844 1,880 1802 1914 1983 1,987
City of Westfir 160 100 100 100 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,020 1,000
Creswell School District . - 52 123 1,000 500 500 500 510 500
EPUD 2420 1,996 1,006 2,398 2,660 2,047 2,153 2,168 2,020 2473
Eugene School District 47 1916 1,631 1631 1,647 1,687 1,720 1,740 1733 1.943 1,980
EWEB 20471 8,530 8,530 8,530 8,736 8,901 9,231 9,280 10,509 10,591
Fem Ridge Library District 470 392 302 392 500 300 500 300 510 500
Heceta Water District . - ) 216 500 500 500 500 510 500
Junction City RFFD . - . - . 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,020 1,000
Lane Community Colleze 1,750 1,306 1,306 1,369 1402 1438 1372 1326 1478 1,513
Lane County 90,623 76,633 76,633 76,633 77,694 79,673 80,507 81,532 86,278 87,142
Lane ESD 470 392 302 392 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,020 1,000
Lane Library District 470 392 392 392 500 500 1,000 500 510 500
MeKenzie School District 63 23 20 20 21 500 500 500 500 510 500
Port of Siuslaw 470 392 392 392 300 300 300 1,000 1020 1,000
Rainbow Water District . - . - . - 500 1020 1000
River Road Park&Rec District 470 392 302 392 1,000 500 1,000 500 510 500
Siuslaw Library District - - 163 392 300 300 300 300 510 500
Siuslaw Rural FBD 21 470 392 302 392 500 500 500 1,000 1020 1,000
South Lane School District - - 177 263 300 300 1,000 1,000 1020 1,000
Springfield School District 19 1193 1,054 1054 1076 1102 1,105 1107 1091 1225 1,245
Westem Lane Ambulance 470 392 302 392 500 500 500 1,000 1,000 1,000
Willamalane Parks & Rec District 470 392 392 392 - 300 300 300 1,020 1,000
Total Member Dues §243,994 $105879 $196361 $197.825 S$206,671 $211,770 $215700 § 218,778 § 230,613 § 232977

*Amounts represent the two-level dues structure with first level at 3300 and second level at 51,000
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Lane Council of Governments

Ratios of Outstanding Debt
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Building Loans Business

Fiscal % of Total Business Loans % of Total Outstanding
Year  Building Loans Loans Loans Total Loans Total Loans Debi

2021 $ 4232093 78.10% 5 1186716 21.90% 3 5418809 § 5418809
2020 4,365,903 17.11% 1.295.916 22.89% 5,661,819 5,661,819
2019 4491232 76.19% 1403816 23 81% 5,895,048 5,895,048
2018 4,612,340 74.66% 1,565,251 25.34% 6,177,791 6.177.791
2017 4730379 T4.54% 1615358 25.46% 6,345,737 6,345,737
2016 4,825,000 73.71% 1,720,898 26.29% 6,545,398 6,545,898
2015 6,900,617 79.09% 1,824,758 20.91% 8,725,375 8725375
2014 7457133 79 46% 1,927,649 20.54% 9,384,302 9,354,802
2013 10,250,699 77.02% 3.058.14% 22.98% 13,308,843 13,308,848
2012 10,626,208 76.67% 3,233,719 2333% 13,859.927 13859627
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Lane Council of Governments

Total Population by Jurisdiction
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021+
State of Oregon 3,883,735 3919020 3962710 4013845 4076350 4141100 4195300 4236400 4268055 4266560
LCOG Region:
Lane County 354,200 356,125 358,805 362,150 365,940 370,600 375,120 378880 381,365 382,647
Lane County % of state
9.1% 9.1% 9.1% 9.0% 9.0% 8.9% B.9% 8.9% 8.9% 9.0%
Coburg 1,045 1,045 1,045 1,055 1,070 1,085 1,195 1,295 1,375 1,322
Cottage Grove 9,770 9,785 9.840 9875 9,850 9.920 10,005 10,140 10,155 10,792
Creswell 4,990 5,020 5075 5,125 5,360 5410 5455 5510 5,585 5.684
Dunes City 1305 1310 1,315 1313 1,320 1,325 1,335 1345 1,365 1434
Eugene 158335 159380 160,775 163400 165,885 167.780 169695 171210 173,620 175626
Florence &470 8480 8,565 8,620 8,680 8745 8,793 8,850 8925 8.600
Junction City 3445 5.550 3,620 3.870 6,010 6.075 6,125 6,160 6,200 7032
Lowell 1,055 1,060 1.060 1,065 1.070 1.070 1.075 1,090 1,050 1.211
Oakridge 3210 3215 3,220 3.240 3255 3,245 3,280 3,305 3,310 3,238
Springfield 59,840 59,990 60,065 60,1335 60,140 60.658 60,865 61,333 61,5335 62,352
Weneta 4610 4.635 4.690 4700 4755 4,785 4790 4. 800 4,845 527
Westfir 255 235 255 255 235 255 260 260 265 260
Unincorporated 95,870 96,200 97.280 97495 98,250 100247 102245 103,560 103,095 98.805
Total 354,200 356,125 358,805 362,150 365,940 370,600 375,120 375,880 381,365 382,647

Source: Annal Population Estimates Program, Population Eesearch Center, Portland State University.

*The Population REesearch Center (PRC) at Portland State University has provided preliminary estimates for 2021.
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Lane Council of Governments

Demographic and Economic Statistics
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011-2020%**

Personal Per Capita Lane County Oregon Lane County Oregon
Calendar Income,in  Personal Median Age Median Unemployment Unemployment

Year Population (a) 51,0005 (b) Income (b) (c) Age () Rate (d) Rate (d)
2011 354.005 12,352 581 34,895 390 38.7 9.7% 8.5%
2012 355,081 12,910,394 36,329 388 389 8.9% B.8%
2013 355,506 12,964 344 36467 393 39.1 8.0% 1.9%
2014 358076 13.867.878 38,729 99 39.3 6.9% 6.8%
2015 362,047 14909371 41181 390 39.1 5.8% 5.6%
2016 369.061 15,594,472 42254 94 39.2 5.1% 4.8%
2017 375,617 16,512,047 43,560 395 39.3 4.4% 4.1%
2018 379.611 17431415 45519 395 39.6 4.5% 42%
2019 382,067 18087217 47.340 385 38.7 4.1% 3.7%
2020 382971 18,988,851 49,583 9.7 402 3.6% 4.2%

** Information for 2021 is not available as of the report date.
Reflects Lane County, Oregon Boundanes

Notes:
(b) The 2020 personal income was not available and has been estimated by multiplying population by per capita income.

Sources:

(2) Population Research Center. Portland State University. Estimates are for July 1 of the fiscal year.

(k) Personal Income from Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA),

(c) Census Bureau did not release 2020 estimates because of the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on data collection; these are estimated numbers.
(d) Oregon Employment Department.

Note: All dollar estimates are m current dollars as of year indicated (not adjusted for inflation).
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Lane Council of Governments

Full Time Employee Equivalents for Each Fiscal Year
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012-2021

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds

Fiscal Board/ Government  Semior & Disability Park Place Loan Non-major  Full Time Emplovee

Year Executive Services Services Bulding ** Programs Proprietary  Equivalents (FTE)
2012 22770 34.60 121.66 036 1.93 0.04 181.29
2013 2129 3219 118.60 0.35 1.91 0.04 174 38
2014 18.72 227 142.06 0.1% 1.32 0.09 18511
2015 12.94 2559 153.10 0.13 1.35 0.10 193 21
2016 13.60 2443 151.%0 0.07 1.40 0.23 191.63
2017 12.59 2479 16591 0.04 1.24 022 20479
2018 12.65 2977 176.11 0.07 1.07 0.13 21980
2019 12.77 26.82 177.58 0.03 0.93 0.16 218.29
2020 13.81 2742 205.82 0.03 0.93 0.17 24818
2021 13.51 29.78 215.07 0.04 0.93 0.04 25938

Sources: Budget documents, audited financial statements, and mtemal payroll documentation.
*## Was Building Management Fund in Prior Fiscal Years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE
REGULATIONS

To the Board of Directors
Lane Council of Governments
Lane County, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2022. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards.

Compliance

tatements are free of material
ws, regulations, contracts and
Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-10-
Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with
cial statements amounts. However, providing
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
onsidered necessary to address the required
following:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LC
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
grants including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as s
000 to 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of
which could have a direct and material effect on deteamin

an opinion on compliance with those provisions wa
express such an opinion. We performed procedures to
comments and disclosures which included, butgu

basic finan

. Deposit of public funds wit ial instituti ORS Chapter 295).
. Indebtedness limitations, reSthicti

. Budgets legally require

. Insurance and fide

. Programs funde , .

. Authorized invest funds (ORS Chapter 294).

. Public contracts an ing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing, nothing’fCame to our attention that caused us to believe LCOG was not in substantial
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal, except as described in the following paragraph.

Oregon Revised Statute 294.910 requires that councils of governments estimate and budget expenditures using the
separate object classifications of personnel services, materials and services, and capital outlay. During our testing
we became aware that several budgeted expenditures meeting the statutory definition of capital outlay had been
included in the budgeted object classification of materials and services. For the year ending June 30, 2020,
budgeted capital outlay was $105,000, reported actual capital outlay was $41,912, and total expenditures that met
the statutory definition of capital outlay were $1,360,274.
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OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered LCOG’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LCOG’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LCOG’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses, or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify anygdeficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may t that have not been identified.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the B
State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone gther than th

ctors and the Oregon Secretary of
specified parties.

ISLER CPA

By: Gatlin Hawkins, CPA, a member of the fi

Eugene, Oregon
January 27, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Lane Council of Governments
Lane County, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each maijor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lane Coufieil of Governments (LCOG) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financi atements, which collectively comprise
LCOG’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon anuary 27, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

considered LCOG’s internal control over
that are appropriate in the circumstances for
t not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
express an opinion on the effectiveness of

In planning and performing our audit of the financial sta
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit pro
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financi
on the effectiveness of LCOG'’s internal control. Acc
LCOG'’s internal control.

operation of a control does not allow management or
signed functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal

employees, in the normal course of g
misstatements on a timely basis. A

not be prevented, or detected d on a timely basis. A SIQn/f/cant def/c1ency |s a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, i 7
merit attention by those chag

was not designed to identify all deficieficies in internal control that might be material weaknesses, or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, @uring our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LCOG's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of LCOG’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering LCOG'’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Isler CPA

By: Gatlin Hawkins, CPA, a member of the firm
Eugene, Oregon
January 27, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Lane Council of Governments
Lane County, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct andématerial effect on each of the LCOG’s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. LCOG’s m federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of fi and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal st s, re tions, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

G$ major federal programs based on our audit of
3 conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on complian

contained in Government Auditing Sta
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of

Principles, and Audit Requiremen al Awards (Uniform Gwdance) Those standards and the Umform
Guidance require that we plan audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major

We believe that our audit provides a sonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal programs.
However, our audit does not provide a‘legal determination of LCOG's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, LCOG complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of LCOG is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered LCOG’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of LCOG's internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on requirements of Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Isler CPA

By: Gatlin Hawkins, CPA, a member of the firm
Eugene. Oregon
January 27, 2022
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Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Federal Agency or Expenditures
CFDA Pass-Through Beginning Amounts Provided of Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Number Loan Balance to Sub-Recipients Awards
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Assistance IRP/RBDF Loan Program:
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767  61-02-052198 § 285,391 - -
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767  61-03-101100 192,029 - -
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767  61-04-073001 175,901 - -
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767  61-05-082202 238,706 - -
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767  61-06-062906 294.689 - -
Total IRP/RBDF Loan Program $ 1,186,716 - -
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - -
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-through Assistance City of Eugene:
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 2021-02012 - 13,895
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - 13.895
U.S. Department of Justice
Pass-through Assistance Lane County Sheriff's Office:
2020-AR-BX-
Comprehensive Opiod Abuse Site-Based Program 16.838 0125 - 53
Total U.S. Department of Justice - 53
U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through Assistance Oregon Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
Highway Planning and Construction (MPO PL FY21) 20.205 34272 - 655,739
Highway Planning and Construction (MPO STBG FY21) 20.205 34272 - 823,719
Highway Planning and Construction (Eugene Bike Counters
FY19-24) 20.205 33024 8,796 8,796
Highway Planning and Construction (OMPOC) 20.205 33715 - 11,902
Highway Planning and Construction (RTP) 20.205 34141 200,000 200,000
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 208,796 1,700,156
CARES Act 5311 LinkLane 20.509 34606 - 1,990
CARES Act 5311 LinkLane 20.509 34525 - 6,385
Highway Safety Cluster:
State and Community Highway Safety (LC Safe Community
FY20) 20.600 SA-20-25-07 - 21,971
State and Community Highway Safety (LC Safe Community
FY21) 20.600 SA-21-25-07 - 78,954
National Priority Safety Programs (Safe Driver Class) 20.616 FHTR-20-60-02 - 3,847
National Priority Safety Programs (Safe Driver Class) 20.616 FHTR-21-60-02 - 1,680
Total Highway Safety Cluster - 106.452
Pass-through Assistance Lane Transit District:
Federal Transit Formula Grants (Safe Routes to School) 20.507 OR-2020-05600 75,598 75,598
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 284.394 1,890,581
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Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Continued
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Direct Assistance Environmental Protection Agency:
Regional Wetlands Program Development Grants

Regional Wetlands Program Development Grants
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through Assistance Oregon Department of Human Services:

Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part B, Grants for
Supportive Services and Senior Centers

COVID-19- CARES Emergency Funding - Title III-B

Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C, Nutrition
Services

COVID-19 FFCRA/CARES Emergency Funding - Title III-C

Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C, Nutrition
Services

HDC5 CAA 2021 Supplemental Funding - Title III-C
COVID-19- FFCRA/CARES Emergency Funding - Title III-C
Nutrition Services Incentive Program

Total Aging Cluster

Special Programs for the Aging, Title VII, Chapter 3, Programs
for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation

National Family Caregiver Support, Title III, Part E
COVID-19 CARES Emergency Funding - Title III-E
Total Oregon Depart of Human Services

Pass-through Assistance Lane County Sheriff’s Office:

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Pass-through Assistance Lane County Health and Human Services:

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

66.461
66.461

93.044
93.044

93.045
93.045

93.045
93.045
93.045
93.053

93.041
93.052
93.052

93.243

93.568
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CD-01J37501
CD-01J69001

160448
160448

160448
160448

160448
160448
160448
160448

160448
160448
160448

53586

53470

28,397
13.240

41.637

539,539
12,698

486,232
131,930

366,144
134,048
364,846
135.128

2,170,565

5,915
142,686
94,486

243,087

2,423

47.664

2,463.739

[R—

$__4.409.905



Lane Council of Governments

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Lane
Council of Governments under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 CFR 200 Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to,
and does not, present financial position, changes in net position, or cash flow of Lane Council of Governments.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Expenditures reported on this schedule are recognized following the costs principles in Title 2 CFR
200, where certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available. Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 — INDIRECT COST RATE

Lane Council of Governments did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - LOAN OR LOAN GUARANTEE PROGRAMS

Lane Council of Governments had the following loan payments and loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2021.
Loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

Agency
Federal or Pass Loan Amounts Year End
CFDA Through Repaid During Balance at
Program Name Number Number the Fiscal Year 6/30/20
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Direct Programs (IRP/RBDF Loan and RBEG Loan
Programs):
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767 61.02 $ 38,806 $ 285,391
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767 61.03 17,991 192,029
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767 61.04 14,826 175,901
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767 61.05 18,362 238,706
Intermediary Relending Program 10.767 61.06 17914 294.689

$ 107.899 $__ 1.186.716
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Lane Council of Governments

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section I Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements.

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered material weakness?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 516(a) of
the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of Major Programs.

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.044, 93.045,
93.053

Aging Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

Section II Financial Statement Findings

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Section IV _Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
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Unmodified

No
No
Unmodified

No

$750,000
Yes

None
None

None



LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Lane Council of Governments
LCOG, 859 Willamette Street, Suite 500, Eugene
The meeting was held via teleconference

VOTING MEMBERS

Present

Bd. Member Mary Walston, Chair (School District 4J)
Bd. Member Heather Buch, Vice-Chair (Lane
County)

Bd. Member Greg James (Willamalane)

Bd. Member Sherry Durst-Higgins (Lane ESD)
Mayor Ray Smith (City of Coburg)

Mayor Don Bennett (City of Lowell)

Bd. Member Rich Cunningham (School District
19)

Councilor John Gambee, (City of Junction City)
Councilor Randy Groves (City of Eugene)

Bd. Member Josh Skov (LTD), Non-voting member

Absent

Representative City of Creswell
Representative School District 52
Representative Junction City RFPD
Representative City of Dunes City
Representative City of Florence
Representative City of Oakridge
Representative City of Westfir
Representative Siuslaw Valley Fire District
Representative Heceta Water PUD

OTHERS

Brenda Wilson, LCOG Executive Director

Howard Schussler, Government Services Director
Emily Farrell, Senior and Disability Services Director
Jeff Griffin, WHA Insurance and Risk Management
Marlene Hockema, Minutes Recorder

MINUTES— LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 30, 2021

September 30, 2021
6:00 p.m.

Mayor Jeff Gowing (City of Cottage Grove)
Councilor Thomas Cotter (City of Veneta)

Bd. Member Susy Laser, Siuslaw Public Library
District

Bd. Member Patti Chappel, Emerald Peoples
Utility District (EPUD)

Rob Ward, Representative Port of Siuslaw

Bd. Member Steve Recca, Representative Fern
Ridge Library District

Bd. Member Jonathan Light, Representative
Springfield School District

Representative EWEB

Representative Rainbow Water and Fire District
Representative Lane Community College (LCC)
Representative School District 40
Representative School District 68
Representative School District 45J3
Representative River Road Parks & Rec. District
Representative Lane Library District
Representative W. Lane Ambulance District
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CALL MEETING TO ORDER

1. Welcome & Introductions
Chair Mary Walston called the meeting of the Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) Board of Directors
to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Requests for Additions to the Agenda
Executive Director Brenda Wilson requested the opportunity to present Mike Eyster’s request for
feedback from the community for Lane Community College as they seek to hire a new president.

3. Public Comment
No one wished to provide public comment to the Board.

PRESENTATION
4. Jeff Griffin, WHA Insurance and Risk Management

Ms. Wilson introduced Jeff Griffin, from WHA Insurance and Risk Management, who walked the board
through a slide presentation regarding property risk management. Mr. Griffin stated that 19 months of
COVID-19 have had a great impact (i.e. political, confusion, fragility, increased civil claims and high
costs). The cost of this culture can be broken down into 1) Workers’ Compensation Cost, 2) Liability
Cost, 3) Short-Term Hidden Costs, and 4) Long-Term Hidden Costs. As an example, the cost of a
bullying claim would cost the business $100K to get to court and the same amount for the defendant. Mr.
Griffin pointed out that claims are preventable and only 7.5% of claims can be attributed to things with
92.5% being caused by a human factor. The board has six responsibilities in risk management:

¢ Organization Direction

e Provision of Necessary Resources

e Provision of Oversight

¢ Risk Management

e Fiduciary Requirements

o Duty of Care

Mr. Griffin encouraged the board to set high standards and do the right thing always. During a time of
discussion it was agreed that a lack of preparedness had played heavily into the change of culture due to
COVID-19 as well as inconsistent and changing mandates and precautions.

BUSINESS ITEMS
5. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes of June 24, 2021
Chair Walston moved, seconded by Ms. Buch, to approve the Minutes of June 24, 2021 as presented. The
motion carried unanimously.

6. Items Removed from Consent Agenda
None.

7. Placeholder for discussion and action on federal funding under the Coronavirus Response and

MINUTES— LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS Page 2
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Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021 (CRRSAA).

Ms. Wilson stated LCOG is the federally designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and is
responsible for federal planning dollars that come into the region. LCOG incurred expenses due to the
Pandemic and had received no FEMA reimbursement. She talked about various options and said the
conversations with FHWA were ongoing and she would bring back more information.

8. REPORTS

a. Advisory Council Reports

Ms. Wilson reviewed the memo and highlighted the Lane Economic District (LEC) and their role in
implementing the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS). She also noted that Lane
Transit District (LTD) was looking for volunteers for board member positions.

b. 4" Quarter Financial Report

Ms. Wilson referred to the memo and reported that the 4" quarter of the budget was completed on June
30, 2021 and is LCOG was currently in audited. She added that while the audit process will change some
figures in the quarterly report, the outlook is better than FY2020 with the budget with 96% revenue and
92% requirements.

c. LCOG Update

Ms. Wilson reported for LCOG stating the current GSD is retiring and she was pleased to inform the
board that there was an excellent pool of candidates and interviewing would start next week. She stated
that cybersecurity is an item of concern to her as even LCOG was not free from risk during a test run;
should an incident occur it would take an average of 2.8 months to remedy the problem and that was a
concern LCOGF was working on fixing. She updated progress on the building (which belongs to LCOG)
and continues to gather information for HVAC improvements but backlogs have prevented responses
from vendors.

As a fun sideline, Ms. Wilson reported that she will be working on a mini-museum, as well as set up
displays of collected awards of government officials.

Additionally, the chair and vice-chair positions are due for election and that information will be discussed
at the October 12, 2021 executive meeting.

Ms. Wilson addressed the issue of employee vaccine mandates and informed the board that the deadline
for “fully” vaccinated is October 18, 2021. There are currently 17 unvaccinated employees of which two
have medical exemptions, four have not responded, and the remaining have filed religious exemptions. As
a note: religious exemptions are for those who hold a sincerely held religious belief for non-vaccination
and would be approved if they do not present an undue burden.

WRAP UP

10. Roundtable, call for future agenda items, emerging issues

Ms. Chappel, Board Member for EPUD reported their 2022 budget was in a good position with no rate
increase for the next one to two years. She added they have hired a new General Manager who would start
January 1, 2022.

Mr. Eyster, representative for LCC, stated they were looking for a new president and would start the

school year virtually (changing to in-person, later), and also have passed their bond measure.
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Vice-Chair Buch, Lane County, informed the board that they would be updating their strategic plan and
would still be working on the recovery effort of the Holiday Farm fire. She added that the county would
be working on mobile sites for COVID-19 booster shots.

Mr. Ward, Port of Siuslaw Representative, stated they are also working on their strategic business plan;
their RV camps are full and they are adding picnic tables and benches.

Randy Groves, representing the City of Eugene, announced they would be opening managed unhoused
sites in compliance with HB2001. He added that the city police are currently answering 140-190 service
calls, per day, and those calls would be a better serviced by a different facility thus relieving the police
department to handle calls better suited to them.

Mr. Recca, Representative for Fern Ridge Library District, indicated they would be working on their
strategic plan.

Jonathan Light introduced himself as the new representative for the Springfield School District.

Mr. James, representing Willamalane, was pleased to announce the opening of a new cross country track
which would be open to the public.

Mr. Stoehr, representing the City of Springfield, stated they would be using their COVID-19 monies to
make up for shortages; and they would be issuing an RFQ for the Glenwood waterfront project.

Mr. Smith, representing the City of Coburg, said they are growing and working on a major water plan
which would be offset with a gas tax.

Ms. Durst-Higgins (Lane ESD), reported the Westmoreland building would need work and South Lane is
back in school.

Mr. Cunningham, Bethel School District, stated they would be in transition with a new superintendent.
They opened “Homes for Good,” a 46 unit apartment for the unhoused and are implementing a $100M
bond.

Mr. Gambee, Junction City representative, informed the board they are growing with 1,000 new
dwellings. He was pleased to inform the group that the Junction City police department has reached
certification level and would be using discretionary funds for the expansion of the police department.

Chair Walston, 4J School District, indicated they are in session and adding volunteers; she added that
they had adopted a climate change effort.

In a discussion regarding Emerging Issues it was determined that climate change was the primary issue
with others being: preparedness, renewable electricity, survivability, rolling blackouts and resource
adequacy.

Chair Walston adjourned the meeting at 8:17 p.m.
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LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERMMENTS

Agenda Item Number
5.b.
FY23 Member Dues

Date: January 27, 2022

Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: Adopt FY23 Member Dues Rates
Background:

At the end of each calendar year, the LCOG Board is asked to adopt new
member rates for the next fiscal year. Member Dues are an essential part
of sustaining the LCOG Budget and are used fund items where no other
funds are available. Member Dues also help keep our Indirect and
Overhead costs down which benefits all members and allows us to use
more of our Senior and Disability state and federal funding to provide
services to all of Lane County. Member Dues also helps keep costs down
in our Business Loan Program and Transportation Planning Program —
which allows more funds to be used in the region.

Currently, the LCOG Member Dues structure has a minimum dues amount
and provides:

0 Representation on the LCOG Board of Directors.

0 Subscription to the Regional Land Inventory Database,
valued at $850.

0 12 hours of LCOG professional staff time each fiscal year
valued at approximately $1,200. Note that this staff time
does not include direct service contracts that LCOG has with
our members.



For Special Districts, the Dues structure includes 2 levels of membership
with a minimum base amount for Level 1 and a minimum base amount for
Level 2. For level 2, members receive the items listed above; for Level 1,
members received all but the 12 hours of staff time.

For all but Special Districts, the dues amount is calculated on population,
enrollment numbers, or customer numbers and we will not have these
updated numbers until after later this year. On the attached Dues
Schedule, the projected population numbers from Portland State for the
County and the cities are used; for all others the Dues Schedule includes a
1% decrease in the “population” numbers for schools and a 1% increase in
customer account numbers for utilities. Once we have the actual numbers,
we will update the numbers and calculate the actual Dues amounts.

History:

These base rates and structure have been “re-set” several times over the
last 45 years to reduce Member Dues for most members without
accounting for inflation or increased costs for LCOG. And while the new
rates sometimes reflected an increase in dues, most members’ dues
amounts are now less than the amounts were in the 1980s and 1990s.

So, in 2014, a Member Dues committee was created to look at Member
Dues. Three main issues were identified:

1. How dues are calculated.

2. What should be included in the services a member receives with their
dues.

3. Whether the Lane Transit District should be allowed to join LCOG as a
dues-paying (voting) member.

The Member Dues Committee members were Faye Stewart (Lane County),
Chris Pryor (city of Eugene), Steve Paulson (city of Lowell), and Steve
Recca (Fern Ridge Library District).

1. How dues are calculated: In 2014, Member Dues had been “frozen” for
four years. The Committee decided dues should be unfrozen and there
should be a minimum Member Dues amount. They discussed the value of
membership and decided the base minimum should be $500. The
Committee also decided that rates should be slightly increased to remove
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the reduction that was put into place at the County’s request but did not
want to raise dues amounts significantly all at once. At that time, the
Committee proposed a rate of 0.22 for the County; a rate of 0.4 for cities; a
rate of 0.1 for school districts; and a rate of 0.1 for utilities. This action
would “re-set” Member Dues rates and eliminate the reduction — even
though the new rates would be less than without the reduction in place. The
idea was to look at rates every year to determine if the base rates should
be revised based on current circumstances.

2. What should be included in the services a member receives with their
dues. The Committee discussed the value of being a member and different
options for membership — like levels of membership where members would
“buy” into the level of services they needed. The decision was to set the
minimum dues amount for basic membership and an RLID subscription; a
second “level” of membership would also have a minimum rate which
would include an RLID subscription and 12 hours of staff time. Both
“levels” would include representation on the Board. In some years,
additional services have been included, like a web-based town hall platform
when available.

3. Whether the Lane Transit District should be allowed to join LCOG as a
dues-paying (voting) member. The LCOG Charter provides under Article ll,
Membership, Section 1 that “membership in the Council is open to any
public agency that has an operating budget, is located in Lane County, has
a service area wholly or primarily in Lane County, and has a policy-level
governing body comprised of officials elected directly to that body by
popular vote.” [emphasis added]. While LTD is a member of the Board,
they are not voting members and do not pay member dues because their
policy Board members are appointed by the Governor — not “elected by
popular vote.” In 2014 LTD had requested the Board review the
Membership provisions of the Charter and allow LTD to become full-voting
members of the Board.

At the same time the Member Dues Committee was meeting, a Bylaw
Committee was also meeting. The Bylaw Committee was also discussing
LCOG membership. The Bylaw Committee discussed the LTD’s
membership issue at length and came to no resolution. There was
discussion about the concern of having non-elected officials as voting
members. The issue being if voters do not like the action a policy body is
taking, they can vote them out but can’t do that if they are not elected. The
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Bylaw Committee discussed some of the regional conflict around LTD and
thought allowing LTD’s appointed officials to be voting members of LCOG
may send the wrong message. It was pointed out by a Committee member
that if LTD was allowed to become a voting member they would have only
one vote on a Board of 33. It was also pointed out that while LTD Board
members are appointed, they are appointed by the Governor and ratified by
the Oregon Senate — which are all elected officials. There was also
acknowledgement that LTD has two voting members on the Metropolitan
Policy Committee, a policy committee which has been delegated its
authority by the LCOG Board. The Bylaw Committee decided that they
could not make a recommendation to the Board.

The Member Dues Committee, however, decided if a transit district was not
prohibited from being a member of a Regional or Council of Government
(COG), then LTD should be allowed to be a full-voting and dues-paying
member of LCOG. State statute provides that transit districts may be
members of COGs and there is no prohibition, except in the LCOG Chatrter,
against those districts being full-voting members. Accordingly, the Member
Dues Committee recommended that LTD be allowed to become a full-
voting and dues-paying member of LCOG. The recommendation and
discussion went to the full LCOG Board. At that time, a majority of Board
members were against having appointed officials as voting members of the
Board.

There was also discussion by the Committee about whether the University
of Oregon (UO) was also eligible to be a member of LCOG. Since the UO
Is a public entity under statute, the Committee felt it should be allowed
membership if it wanted to become a member.



Notes FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
Total
Dues Revenue| $ 231,203| $ 236,000 | $ 224,000| $ 237,444
Expenditures
1 Executive Director] $ 112,427 | $ 107,310 $ 110,310 $ 114,171
2 Gov Senvices Director| $ 68,052 | $ 86,120 | $ 89,207 | $ 76,327
3 Capital Expenses| $ 1,000] $ 1,000] $ 1,000| $ 1,000
4 Board Support] $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 8,000]| $ 8,000
5 Member Time| $ 13,000| $ 13,000 | $ 13,000| $ 13,000
6 Misc Expense| $ 25,000] $ 25,000| $ 25,000| $ 25,000
Total expenditures| $ 2274791 $ 240,430 $ 246,517 $ 237,498
Balance| $ 3724 $ (4,430)| $ (22,517)| $ (54)
1. Executive Director funded at .40 FTE; includes salary, fringe, and Indirect.
2. Government Services Director funded at .40 FTE; includes salary, fringe, and Indirect.
3. Cost of Copiers, office equipment, etc.
4. Support for LCOG Board, Executive Committee, Audit and Budget Committee, advisory
committee meetings.
5. Cost of 12 hours member service time.

6. State and federal grant match, training, travel, appreciation dinner expense, subscriptions,
advertising, etc.

As you can see from the table, the Dues amount has not covered all
expenses for the past two fiscal years. This has not been an issue because
of additional revenue in the General Fund from loan payments of
approximately $43,000 a year from the Park Place Building. That loan,
however, will be paid off in FY22, leaving Member Dues the General
Fund’s only main source of revenue.

At the January 11, 2022 Executive Committee meeting, | recommended
keeping the same structure, but increasing the base rates for all members.
This includes increasing the County’s rate from 0.230 to 0.239 to keep the
base rate in line with the city base rate. The County’s rate has remained
relatively steady while other member’s rates have increased over time. This
would bring the County’s rate more in line with other members. See
Attachment B.

The total dues amount is estimated to be about $237,816 — an increase of
about $13,000 over last FY due to some increased costs and lower dues
for some members due to changes in population. These numbers will be
adjusted accordingly once we have final numbers. The Executive



Committee unanimously approved and recommend the Board adopt the
FY23 Dues as presented.

Suggested Action: Adopt the FY23 Member Dues Rates as Presented.

Attachment: A - FY23 Dues Schedule
B — Dues History



JURISDICTION

Lane County
Cities
Eugene
Springfield
Cottage Grove
Florence
Junction City
Creswell
Veneta
Oakridge
Dunes City
Coburg
Lowell
Westfir

School Districts
LCC

Eugene 4J
Springfield
Bethel

South Lane
Creswell
McKenzie
Utilities

EWEB

EPUD

Heceta
Rainbow Water

Special Districts
Port of Siuslaw

Lane ESD

Western Lane Amb
Willamalane

River Road Park Dist
Fern Ridge Library Dist
Siulaw Valley F&R
Lane Library Dist
Siuslaw Library Dist
Junction City RFPD
Rainbow Water Dist

ATTACHA - FY23
LCOG MEMBER DUES
JULY 2022 - JUNE 2023

FY22 MEMBER DUES RATES

PROPOSED FY23 MEMBER DUES

| TOTAL

RATES

Dues - Dues - Dues - Dues -

BASE RATE | Level 1] Level 2 BASE RATE | Level 1 Level 2
381,365| 0.230 $ 87,714 382,647| 0.239 $ 91,453
173,620 0.414 $ 71,879 175,626 0.420 $ 73,763
61,535 0.414 $ 25,475 62,352| 0.420 $ 26,188
10,155| 0.414 $ 4,204 10,792| 0.420 $ 4,533
8,925| 0.414 $ 3,695 9,600 0.420 $ 4,032
6,200 0.414 $ 2,567 7,032 0.420 $ 2,953
5,5685| 0.414 $ 2,312 5,684 0.420 $ 2,387
4,845 0.414 $ 2,006 5271 0.420 $ 2214
3,310 0.414 $ 1,370 3,238 0.420 $ 1,360
1,365] 0.414| $ 500 | $ 1,000 1,454] 0420/ $ 510($ 1,020
1,375] 0.414] $ 500 $ 1,000 1,322 0.420]{$ 510|$ 1,020
1,090 0.414]| $ 500 | $ 1,000 1,211] 0.420{$ 510($ 1,020
265| 0.414]$ 500 [ $ 1,000 260 04201$ 510($ 1,020
13,207 0.113 $ 1,492 13,075| 0.115 $ 1,504
17,369] 0.113 $ 1,963 17,195| 0.115 $ 1,977
10,946 0.113 $ 1,237 10,837 0.115 $ 1,246
5,680 0.113]$ 500 | $ 1,000 5,623] 0.115($ 510]|$ 1,020
2,873] 0.113]$ 500 |$ 1,000 2,844 0.115|/$ 510($ 1,020
1,303] 0.113| $ 500 | $ 1,000 1,290 0.115|/$ 510($ 1,020
199 0.113]$ 500 $ 1,000 197 0.115|$ 510(|$ 1,020
93,930| 0.113 $ 10,614 94,869| 0.115 $ 10,910
18,053] 0.113 $ 2,040 18,053| 0.115 $ 2,076
$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500]|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500]|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500]|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500]|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|$ 1,000 $ 510|$% 1,020

$ 500]|$ 1,000 $ 510|$ 1,020

$ 500|%$ 1,000 $ 510|% 1,020
| 10,000] 239,568] 10,710] 248,016
Expect 237,816

-1%
-1%
-1%

1%
1%



ATTACH B - LCOG DUES RATES HISTORY

Diff B/IT
Fiscal Dues County City | School | Utility | Special Notes County
Year | Received Rate Rate | Rate | Rate |Districts and City

rates

1978 $197,978 0.440| 0.500( 0.240] 0.130 $300 0.060
1979 $211,528 0.440| 0.500( 0.240| 0.130 $300 0.060
1980 $197,126 0.440| 0.500( 0.240| 0.130 $300 0.060
1981 $217,853 0.480| 0.550( 0.260| 0.140 $330 0.070
1982 $232,441 0.480| 0.610/ 0.290| 0.150 $400 0.130
1983 $184,342 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1984 $191,477 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1985 $189,355 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1986 $189,879 0.340] 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1987 $191,526 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1988 $186,818 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1989 $198,085 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1990 $210,246 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1991 $204,589 0.340] 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1992 $209,846 0.340] 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1993 $217,533 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1994 $219,838 0.340] 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1995 $226,975 0.340| 0.520| 0.250| 0.130 $340 0.180
1996 $203,419 0.290| 0.520| 0.130] 0.130 $500 0.230
1997 $210,304 0.290| 0.520| 0.130] 0.130 $503 0.230
1998 $146,795 0.200{ 0.360{ 0.090] 0.090 $357 0.160
1999 $155,539 0.205] 0.369 0.092] 0.092 $369 0.164
2000 $161,664 0.208| 0.375| 0.094| 0.094 $375 0.167
2001 $167,936 0.213| 0.384 0.096] 0.096 $384 0.171
2002 $176,441 0.220] 0.397| 0.099] 0.099 $397 0.177
2003 $183,738 0.226] 0.408[ 0.102|] 0.102 $408 0.182
2004 $186,906 0.230| 0.415( 0.104] 0.104 $415 0.185
2005 $195,199 0.235| 0.424| 0.106] 0.106 $424 0.189
2006 $202,211 0.241| 0.435[ 0.109] 0.109 $435 0.194
2007 $210,217 0.248| 0.448( 0.112| 0.112 $448 0.200
2008 $219,472 0.255| 0.461| 0.115] 0.115 $461 0.206
2009 $227,762 0.260| 0.470( 0.117] 0.117 $470 0.210
2010 $230,585 0.260| 0.470( 0.117] 0.117 $470 0.210
2011 $232,209 0.260| 0.470( 0.117] 0.117 $470 0.210
2012 $234,224 0.260| 0.470( 0.117] 0.117 $470 0.210
2013 $196,146 0.217| 0.392 0.098| 0.098 $392(* dues for all members were reduced by 16.5 percent 0.175
2014 $197,197 0.217| 0.392| 0.098] 0.098 $392]* 16.5 reduction held 0.175
2015 $197,915 0.217| 0.392 0.098| 0.098 $392(* 16.5 reduction held; includes 4 new members 0.175
2016 $213,149 0.220| 0.400( 0.100] 0.100 $510(Slight increase 0.180
2017 $217,270 0.220 0.400( 0.100] 0.100 $510(Dues rate the same 0.180
2018 $220,700 0.220| 0.400( 0.100] 0.100 $510(Dues rate the same 0.180
2018 $223,778 0.220 0.400( 0.100] 0.100 $510(Dues rate the same 0.180
2020 $237,438 0.220| 0.400( 0.100] 0.100 $510(Dues rate the same 0.180
2021 $239,568 0.230] 0.414] 0.113] 0.113 $510(Slight adjustment to rates 0.184
2022 $252,020 0.239] 0.420| 0.115] 0.115 $510(Slight adjustment to rates 0.181




| g—

LCOG
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Agenda Item Number
5.C.
FY23 Budget Assumptions

Date: January 27, 2022
Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: Adopt FY23 Budget Assumptions

Background:

Under this item, the Committee is asked to review the proposed
Assumptions that, when approved by the Board, will guide the development
of the agency’s budget for FY23. The Assumptions have been prepared by
management based on information currently known.

On January 11, 2022, the LCOG Executive Committee voted unanimously
to recommend the Board adopt the FY23 Budget Assumptions.

Suggested Action: Adopt the FY23 Budget Assumptions

Attachments:  FY23 Budget Assumptions



LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FY23 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS

OVERALL GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR THE FY23 BUDGET

. LCOG will continue to take all actions to ensure the safety of its staff and the public
we serve against any threats from COVID-109.

° LCOG will continue to stabilize the General Fund.

. LCOG will continue to build reserves that are consistent with reserve policies
adopted by the Board.

. LCOG will continue to stabilize Indirect rates, while making sure the rates
accurately reflect actual internal costs and are in line with OMB Circular A87.

e To the maximum extent possible, all direct programs and contracts will be self-
supporting. LCOG General Fund dollars will only be used to support programs and
contracts when required as match or to provide temporary support to a program or
to support a strategic initiative that has received prior approval from the Executive
Director.

. LCOG will continue to balance its budget and will continue to ensure a stable
budget, consistent with Board adopted policies.

FY23 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS
1. Member Dues:

LCOG has a two-tier Member Dues structure with each level having a minimum
dues amount. Level 2 provides the member with 12 hours of staff time. Dues are
calculated on a base rate. FY22 base rates were: 0.23 for the County; 0.414 for
cities; 0.113 for school districts and utilities. The annual dues amount is calculated
using population, enrollment, and service customers, as applicable. Special Districts
are either $500 or $1,000, depending on Level chosen. The total dues amount was
estimated to be about $230,000 — an increase of about $6,000 over the previous
year due to population changes.

For FY 23, | recommended we keep the FY23 rate structure the same because the
new dues structure is serving LCOG’s members well and there is so much
uncertainty right now. The base rates, however, could be adjusted to reset the dues
so that discounts are removed, and the dues amount keeps up with expenses. A
recommendation was presented to the Exec Committee at their January meeting
and they approved recommending those rates to the LCOG Board on January 27,
2022.



LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FY23 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS

2. Employee Compensation:

The current Employees Association (EA) Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA)
expires on December 31, 2023. The current SEIU CBA expires on June 30, 2022.

Both CBAs currently provide for a COLA on July 1, 2022, based on the five-year
average CPI-W. The EA CBA provides, however, if the five-year average is 2.5% or
higher, bargaining will be re-opened. The current SEIU CBA provides for a 2.0%
minimum and a 3.10% maximum.

For the CPI-W West, Size Class B/C Average of the five prior years, with 59 of the
60 months reported, the 5-year average is 2.92%. While we are still waiting on
December 2021, using November 2021 (7.6%), the 5-year average looks like it will
be 2.99%. Accordingly, while we do not know the COLA for FY23, we will build the
budget on a 2.99% COLA.

LCOG is in the process of completing a Salary Survey for SEIU employees, per the
current Collective Bargaining Agreement. Salaries will be adjusted per the results of
the survey. Any increase will be used to build the FY23 budget.

In FY23, merit increases are expected to increase total compensation for LCOG
employees. Employees who are performing satisfactorily are eligible for 3.5% annual
merit increases; employees who are at the top step of their salary range currently
receive an annual top step bonus of $500 if they are performing satisfactorily. We
will build the budget assuming satisfactory performance by all employees. Currently,
270 of the approximately 290 employees are not at the top step of their salary range
in FY23.

The Executive Director’'s compensation is set by the LCOG Board under a contract.
The current contract expires June 30, 2023 and will be re-evaluated in the spring of
2022. The FY23 budget will be built based on the contract provisions in the current
contract.

3. PERS:

PERS issues rates every two years and the 2021-23 rates, which apply to FY23, are
as follows:

e Tier 1/ Tier 2: 25.40%.
e OPSRP: 20.78%.

Because of increases in salary, the contribution amount required by LCOG to be
remitted to PERS will increase and we will budget for that amount once we know
what our total salary expense will be for FY23.



LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FY23 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS

1. Health Insurance:

LCOG has two health plans for employees to choose from: the Regence plan is a
high-deductible plan and requires an employer-paid contribution into a Health
Reimbursement Account (HRA). The Kaiser plan, which is a co-pay plan, does not
include an HRA.

Our health Insurance premiums increased by 5% for Regence and Kaiser on
January 1, 2022. The cost of health care for the second half of FY23 is currently
unknown. For this reason, we will estimate the costs for the second half of FY23 at
an increase of 5%. Should health insurance costs increase beyond what is
assumed, LCOG will present the increase as part of its Revised FY23 Budget for
Board approval in the spring of 2022. Both EA and SEIU Employees pay 5.0% cost-
share for health insurance premiums. Our dental insurance premiums have
increased by 3%.

2. Other Insurance:

General Liability Insurance: For FY23, we expect premiums to increase by 8% to
15%, which is double FY22's increase. These increases are based on employment
practices and auto liability claims. The higher deductible plan we switched to two
years ago saves us on the premium, but these are steep increases. We will budget
for a 15% increase which is about $12,500.

Property Liability Insurance: For FY23, we expect premiums to increase by 10% to
15% which is half of FY22's increases. We will budget for a 15% increase which is
about $2,240.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance: We will not know our FY23 rates until spring of
2022, but our carrier expects a 3% to 5% increase. We will budget for a 5% increase
which is about $2,650.

Overall increases in the above insurance amounts to approximately a $20,000
increase over $147,000 in FY22.

Life and Long-Term Disability rates are expected to remain the same as in FY22.
3. Contingency Accounts:

Operations Contingency Account: Board policy requires the Operations Contingency
Account to be funded at a level reflecting one quarterly mortgage payment and two
month’s salary.* For FY22 these amounts were $232,273 and $79,146, respectively,
totaling $311,418. While we will not know the total amount for FY22 until we build
the Proposed Budget, | recommend we fund the Account at the amount the policy
formula requires.
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*The two month’s salary is of non-federal, non-state, and non-grant supported personnel.

Capital Contingency Account: While there is no funding level requirement for this
Account, all excess revenues from the Park Place Building have been placed in this
Account. | recommend that practice continue. Currently, there is $675,500 in the
Capital Contingency Account.

. Equipment and Training:
LCOG will provide effective workspace, equipment and training to enable employees

to be productive and effective, especially since we expect the majority of our
employees to continue to work remotely.

. Government Services:

We will continue to stabilize our billing rates, making sure our rates cover our costs
and keep us competitive and affordable. We will also continue to ensure our billing
invoices are transparent and standardized.

. Senior and Disability Services:

Following long term emergencies and system changes at the State level, LCOG will
continue to find efficiencies in Senior and Disability Services (S&DS) to address the
large workload while continuing to provide services at levels required and expected.

S&DS has two primary sources of funding. First, as a Type B Transfer agency,
S&DS has a contract with Oregon’s Department of Human Services to provide
Medicaid and Food Stamp services to seniors and people with disabilities in Lane
County. Second, as an Area Agency on Aging, S&DS receives funding through the
Older Americans Act (OAA).

In FY21 and FY22, the State has implemented significant systems changes and
updates that, in the face of the pandemic, have an ongoing impact to funding and
staffing levels. This additional staff time and investment is contemplated to have
significant statewide budget impacts through the fiscal year and coming out of FY22.

As FY22 started a new biennium of funding approved through the 2021 Legislative
Session, additional funding for staffing across the state was provided. As a result,
we will continue to implement increases to staffing levels in FY22 and FY23 to
ensure long term sustainability. However, as a result of contract delays in FY22, and
a pending application for a 1115 Federal Demonstration waiver that will impact
Oregon Project Independence funding allocations, the long-term budgetary impacts
of state actions will not be clear until Fall of 2022.



LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FY23 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS

Given the uncertainty, we will budget FY23 with only a slight increase reflecting the
funds we will receive in FY22. Should the allocation change significantly, we will
adjust accordingly.

. Enterprise Services:

We will continue to strategize how to grow the Business Loan Program into a more
sustainable program and we will continue to stabilize our Minutes Recorder Program
billing rates, making sure our rates cover our costs and keep us affordable. While
the Local Government Personal Services Program is not currently an Enterprise
Fund, as we continue to market and grow the Program into a sustainable and
valuable service, the plan is to move it to the Enterprise Fund in the future so it can
be run as a business.

Since the beginning of the Pandemic in March of 2020, LCOG has been impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in some revenue loss, especially for the Park
Place Building. LCOG lost $86,000 in rental income over the past two years and had
an increase in janitorial costs of $10,000. In addition, the replacement of the HVAC
System for the Park Place Building was delayed due to impacts of COVID on
contractors. We will include an updated maintenance and preservation schedule for
the Park Place Building in the FY23 budget once we have information back from
contractors on the cost of replacement.
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Agenda Item Number
7.
Executive Committee Members

Date: January 27, 2022
Presenter: Brenda Wilson
Subject: Executive Committee Members

Action Recommended: Ratify and Elect Executive Committee
Members.

Background:

The LCOG Bylaws call for the incoming Chair to appoint up to five Board
Members to the Executive Committee to be ratified by the Board. The
Board is also responsible for electing two additional members.

The Incoming Chair, Commissioner Heather Buch, and Vice-Chair Sonya
Carlson, chose the following jurisdictions to serve on the Executive
Committee:

City of Eugene

Willamalane Park and Recreation District

Springfield School District

EPUD

Port of Siuslaw (meets required coastal representative requirement)



As of the writing of this memo, Brenda had not heard back from the
Springfield School District and that current Exec Member Lacer was declining
due to other commitments. Brenda has reached out to the Port representative.

Recommended Actions:

1. Ratify the LCOG Board members representing the above jurisdictions
as Executive Committee members for 2022.

2. Hold election for additional Two Executive Committee Members.
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Agenda Item Number

8

Lane Economic Committee Members

Date: January 27, 2022

Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: Appoint Members to the Lane Economic

Background:

Committee

The Lane Economic Committee (LEC) operates under Bylaws approved by
the LCOG Board. Under those Bylaws, appointments or re-appointments
of LEC members are to be approved by the LCOG Board of Directors. The
current LEC members, whose terms were expiring, were contacted to
determine their interest in re-appointment. The members nominated by
Eugene, Springfield, and Lane County continue to be nominated by their
jurisdiction. The LEC met on November 8, 2021, and makes the following
recommendations for appointment/re-appointment:

Vanessa Ringgold

Education — University of
Oregon

Term expires 12/31/21. Re-appoint to
a new three year term.

Paul Berger Business — Saavsus, Inc. | Term expires 12/31/21. Re-appoint to
Child & Family help a new three year term.

Greg Ervin Government — City of Term expires 12/31/21. Re-appoint to
Cottage Grove a new three year term.

Anne Fifield Government — City of Term expires 12/31/21. Re-appoint to
Eugene a new three year term.

Mike Eyster Lane Community College | Term expires 12/21/21. Re-appoint to

a new three year term.

Courtney Griesel

Government — City of

Term expires 12/31/18. Re-appoint to

Springfield a new three year term.
Jenna Cusimano Government — Lane Appoint to a new three year term to
County replace Austin Ramirez whose term

expires 12/31/21.




The LEC bylaws provide that “members representing government shall
include the following: a) Lane County Commissioner, b) City of Eugene
Councilor, c) City of Springfield Councilor, and d) City Councilor from
another incorporated city in Lane County. Members representing a
government can be nominated by their respective jurisdictions, except that
the unspecified members will be selected by the LCOG Board.”

The “unspecified municipal elected official” is represented by Greg Ervin,
City of Cottage Grove, who is recommended for re-appointment to this
position.

The attached table shows the full member list of the LEC and assumes
favorable action on these recommended nominations for appointment/re-
appointment.

Suggested Action:

Recommend Board appoint/re-appoint the above listed individuals to the
LEC.



LEC MEMBERS EMPLOYER REPRESENTING | oM | Term Alternate
Began Ends
TBD (Business) 2019 N/A
Anne Fifield* City of Eugene Government N/A 12/21 TBD
Ashley Espinoza Lane Workf(?rce Business / Labor 2018 12/23 Kristina Payne
Partnership
Courtney Griesel* City of S.pm?gfleld Government N/A 12/21 TBD
Economic Director
Economic

City of Cottage Grove .

Faye Stewart Public Works/ED Director Development / 2020 12/23 Robert Scoggin
Government
Greg Ervin** City of Cotta.ge Grove Government 2018 12/21 Len Blackstone
Councilor
. Lane County
Jenna Cusimano* . Government 2018 12/21 TBD
Economic Development
Jeremy Caudle . City of.ngeII Government 2020 12/23 Mike Galvin
City Administrator
Kari Westlund Travel Lane County Ex-Officio 2017 N/A Andy Vobora
Kelli Weese City of Florence Government 2009 12/23 Sarah Moehrke
Mark Bodie U.S. Bank Business / Finance 2020 12/23 Gary Collins
Matt Michel C.Ity of err?eta Government 2020 12/23
City Administer
. Lane Community College .
Mike Eyster Board Member Education 2018 12/21
Paul Berger Saavsus Business 2014 12/21 Larry Brice
Raymond Hardman Emerald Broadband Business 2020 12/23
Robert Killen LCC SBDC Business / 2020 | 12/23 Jake Clifton
Education

Vanessa Ringgold University of Oregon Education 2018 12/21 Karen Hyatt

*These positions are appointed by their respective elected bodies.
**This position is appointed by the LCOG Board.

Red highlighted members have terms ending in December 2021.
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| Agenda Item Number
9.
Appointments of Members to the
Loan Administration Committee (LAC)

Date: January 27, 2022
Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: Appoint Members

BACKGROUND: The LAC reviews and approves loans under LCOG’s
USDA Intermediary Relending Program and also under the EDA Revolving
Loan Fund. The LAC Workplan requires that new committee members be
approved by the LCOG Board after recommendation by the Lane Economic
Committee (LEC).

The LAC reviews and approves loans under LCOG’s USDA Intermediary
Relending Program and also under the EDA Revolving Loan Fund. The LAC
Workplan requires that new committee members be approved by the LCOG
Board after recommendation by the Lane Economic Committee (LEC).

On November 8, 2021, the LEC chose Eric Lind to represent Banking. Eric
Lind has many years lending experience and is well versed in government
loan programs:

Banking:

Pacific Continental Bank, 1999 — 2003: Commercial Loan Officer

Umpqua Bank, 2003 — 2011: Commercial Loan Officer for one year, the SBA BDO
for seven years

SELCO Community Credit Union, 2011 — 2019: Commercial Loan Officer

Lane SBDC, 2020 — present: Capital Access Team Advisor (8 — 10 hours per week)

Community Involvement:
United Way Campaign Chairman, 1976: Coos and Curry Counties
United Way of SW Oregon, 1977 — 1978: President
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Eugene Delta Rotary, 1985 — 86: President
Oregon State Board of Accountancy, 2010 — 2013: Board Member
Evergreen Business Capital, Seattle, 2012 — 2019: Loan Committee Member

Current Members of the LAC:

Member Employer Membership Category
Don Churnside Gaydos Churnside | Attorney
Balthrop
Austin Ramirez Lane County Lane County representative
Robert Killen Lane SBDC (Dir.) Eco Devo - Education
Patty Schulz Citizens Bank Banking
John Stacy Banner Bank Banking
Thomas Cotter Fern Ridge Realty / | Elected Official / At-Large
Veneta City Council
Keina Wolf LCOG LCOG employee
Eric Lind State / LCC/ SBA | State Capital Access Team

Suggested Action: Approve the nomination of Eric Lind to the Loan
Advisory Committee.
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LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERMMENTS

Agenda Item Number
10.a.
Report of the Executive Committee

Date: January 27, 2022
Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: None. Information Only

October 12, 2021 MEETING NOTES:

Members present remotely were: Chair Mary Walston, Vice-Chair Heather Buch,
Sonya Carlson, Sherry Duerst-Higgins, Kathy Holston, Randy Groves, Greg James,
Susy Lacer. Also present were LCOG Executive Director Brenda Wilson.

Policy / Action Items

1. Nominations for Chair and Vice-Chair. Brenda explained that historically, the
sitting Vice Chair was nominated and elected as the incoming Chair. Sonya
Carlson nominated and Randy Groves seconded Heather Buch (Lane County) as
Chair. The nomination was supported unanimously. Heather Buch nominated
and Randy Groves seconded Sonya Carlson (EWEB) as Vice-Chair. The
nomination was supported unanimously.

2. Date for December Board Meeting Agenda. December 16 was chosen and while
some had conflicts, they would try and make it.

3. Brenda provided background on federal funding under the Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021 (CRRSAA). ODOT
has worked to allow the funding to be used for revenue losses due to the
Pandemic to make the funding more flexible.



She gave a brief history of the LCOG Board’s delegation of some authority to the
Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC), reminding the Committee that the LCOG
Board was the policy committee for the Central Lane metropolitan Planning
Organization (MPO) and the MPC is an advisory committee to the LCOG Board.
Brenda also noted that other decisions, like the expansion of the MPO boundary,
would be brought forward for action and the LCOG Board, not the MPC, should
take action.

Brenda explained the Federal Highway Administration has refused to release the
MPOQO'’s funding because they wanted documentation that the MPO Policy Board
had made the decision to use the funds to backfill revenue losses instead of
using the funds for projects and appeared to be confused as to which body
should make that decision. FHWA believes the MPC is the MPO Policy Board,
but as Brenda explained, they are an advisory committee to the LCOG Board,
which is the MPO Policy Board. The LCOG Board, as the MPO policy board,
could pull back all the delegated authority from the MPC if it wanted. Brenda
outlined a couple of options for moving forward.

Brenda stated one option would be for the MPC to decide what to do with the
funding. She believed transportation staff would want to use the funding for
transportation projects. She stated she would argue that when the federal
Infrastructure Bill passes, they expect at least $4 million to come to the MPO
from that bill (on top of other funding) for projects and that funding will need to be
spent in a short period of time and they may have issues doing so. If that funding
IS not used, it will be lost. She noted that each of the jurisdictions represented on
the MPC also received federal funds in both COVID relief bills; LCOG did not
receive any funds.

Brenda stated another option would be for the LCOG Board to decide what to do
with the funding. She would recommend the funding come to the MPO
organization as the organization had suffered revenue losses and had expenses
due to the Pandemic. She stated LCOG had expended approximately $200,000
in staff time dealing with he Pandemic; approximately $50,000 in PPE and other
related expenses, loss of revenue in the Link Lane program, losses from tenants
not being able to pay their rent of going out of business, to mention a few. She
also noted that LCOG was a member organization and members had losses as
well and the funding could be used to offset some of the losses members had,
like reduction in dues or setting up grant programs. Brenda stated she would
recommend the funding be used to develop a regional Broadband Strategy which
was needed in order to prepare the region for anticipated federal funding for
Broadband.
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Sonya Carlson asked if the expansion of the MPO Boundary would require staff
work and could this funding cover that work? Brenda responded that it would
require transportation staff and GIS staff work. She asked if there was any
funding provided for that? Brenda said yes, the MPO could use its planning
funding, but that means there is less available for the jurisdictions because the
funding is split among the jurisdictions. Sonya stated she was supported to keep
the decision with the LCOG Board and she agreed there needed to be
clarification — in a resolution - around authority especially for the MPO Boundary
decision. She noted she was in favor of a Broadband Strategy but noted she was
not in favor of reducing member dues, but understood others may. She was more
in favor of keeping the funds with LCOG and finding ways to assist the members.

Greg stated he remembers the delegation of authority and stated there had been
“push and pull” around the delegation over the years. He clarified the veto power
of the MPC. He stated he agreed with Sonya’s statements. He stated he wanted

to hear from Commissioner Buch and Counselor Groves since they represented

the MPO jurisdictions.

Randy Groves stated he agreed that Broadband in our region was an issue and
supported a Broadband Strategy, but needed to check in with city staff on this
issue to make sure he wasn’'t missing anything and was representing his city. He
did clarify that he was supportive of working with the other jurisdictions, but
needed to check in with city staff.

Heather Buch noted there will always be a laundry list of transportation projects
to fund and they will take years to build and $2 million is a small amount. She
isn’t discounting that transportation need to be funded, but that will always be the
case. She was concerned about Lane County’s rural areas and lack of
connectivity and supported using the funding on a Broadband Strategy so we can
be prepared for when funds are available for Broadband.

Kathy Holston stated she agree with Commissioner Buch that while
transportation funding was always needed, it would always be needed and $2
million was a small amount in transportation, but a large amount that could be
used to backfill losses and to fund Broadband efforts. She emphasized how
important funding grant writing resources is needed, especially in rural areas.

Brenda stated she would bring it back to the November Executive Committee
meeting for further discussion. Brenda noted she mentioned this funding issue in
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the SEL meeting the week before so the Execs of the MPO jurisdictions knew
this funding was coming to the MPO.

4. Plan for Annual Appreciation Dinner — The Committee agreed they wanted an
event, that is should be virtual, that highlighted all of the great things going on in
every agency in the county while recognizing all of the great work going on.
Brenda recommended that the Outstanding Career Award should be presented
since they only get one time to do that, but maybe not the other awards since so
many great things have been going on.

Sherry and Kathy liked the idea of emphasizing all the great things going on in all
jurisdictions. Kathy agreed that the awards that can only be done once should
still be given. Sonya agreed and was concerned with how onerous getting
nominations would be given how everyone was stretched so thin right now.
Heather agreed and commented on the Outstanding Career Award. Randy
agrees and likes the idea of doing something to feel like returning to normal, but
a streamlined event. He gave an example of some of the events he had
attended. Mary agreed and felt it was important to do something and liked the
idea of highlighting all the great work that has occurred.

5. Government Service Recruitment — Brenda provided an update on the
recruitment and stated they were looking for the right person and not necessary
as the best candidate out of the pool. If they did not find the right fit from this
recruitment, they would go out again.

December 14, 2022 MEETING NOTES:

Members present were: Chair Mary Walston (in person), remotely: Vice-Chair Heather
Buch, Sonya Carlson, Sherry Duerst-Higgins, Randy Groves, Kathy Holston, Greg
James, Susy Lacer. Also present were LCOG Executive Director Brenda Wilson.

Policy / Action Items

1. FY23 LCOG Dues Rates — Brenda referred to the memo in the packet.
Committee members had questions about the base rate and how that was
determined. Brenda explained there was not set way to determine the base
rates, but they were being adjusted over the last couple of years to remove a
discount the County had requested several years ago and have the County’s
dues more in line with the base rate for cities. Greg James mentioned the
Member Dues Committee that had been convened in 2014 and that they had
structured the member Dues rates. Sonya Carlson asked what the dues were
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used for. Brenda suggested the Committee take no action and allow her to bring
back the item in January with more information.

2. Lane Workforce Partnership, Letter of Support — Brenda referred to the memo
and the draft letter. Randy Groves motioned; Sonya Carlson seconded sending
the letter. The Committee unanimously approved.

3. Draft January Board Meeting Agenda - Brenda referred to the draft agenda. The
Committee supported the agenda.

4. Randy Groves asked about the CRSSAA Fund issue. Brenda stated MPO
jurisdictional staff were discussing and would take the discussion to the MPC.,

January 11, 2022 MEETING NOTES:

Members present were: Chair Mary Walston (in person), remotely: Vice-Chair Heather
Buch, Sonya Carlson, Sherry Duerst-Higgins, Randy Groves, Greg James, Susy Lacer.
Also present were LCOG Executive Director Brenda Wilson, Finance Manager Keina
Wolf, Financial Analyst David Joyal, and Isler LLP auditor Gatlin Hawkins.

Policy / Action Items

1. Appointment of 5 Executive Committee Members — Brenda noted that Incoming
Chair Heather Buch and Vice-Chair Sonya Carlson had chosen five member agencies
to serve on the 2020 Executive Committee: city of Eugene, Willamalane Park and
Recreation District, Springfield School District, EPUD, and a coastal representative as
required by the Charter. Brenda stated the representatives from the city of Eugene and
Willamalane had accepted but she had not heard back from the Springfield School
District and that current Exec Member Lacer was declining due to other commitments.
Brenda stated she would reach out to the Port representative. The representatives
from Lane ESD, Eugene 4j, and Veneta said they would all serve if needed. Susy
Lacer said she would consider if no one else from the coast would serve. Brenda will
check in with other members and bring this to the January Board meeting.

2. FY23 LCOG Dues Rates — Brenda referred to the Memo and attachments. She
noted that population, school enrollment, and utility customer counts were not yet
available and would be updated once the numbers were available. She recommended
increasing the current base rates to keep up with costs and eliminate a discount that
was put into place several years ago but keep the same formula. Sherry Duerst-
Higgins asked if members were reminded if they had Member Dues Hours and Brenda
said they were in the letter that went out with the Dues invoice and noted that the
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Member Dues Hours could only be used for non-project work that required a couple of
hours, or special circumstances, like the Connect Lane Bike project. Brenda stated
they would think of ways to remind administrators of the hours they could use. Greg
James motioned, Sherry Duerst-Higgins seconded, and the Executive Committee
unanimously approved to recommend the Board adopt these Dues rates.

3. FY23 Budget Assumptions - Brenda referred to the Memo and attachments. Brenda
noted that some of the increases were not yet known and the budget would be built on
the actual numbers once we knew those numbers. Greg James asked about the
increase in property insurance, Brenda responded that while it was going up, the
increase was approximately $2,200 and LCOG purchases their insurance as a
package and while it has a large deductible, this lowers the premiums.

Sonya Carlson motioned, Heather Buch seconded, and the Executive Committee
unanimously approved to recommend the Board adopt these Budget Assumptions and
Processes.

4. FY21 Audit Update — Sonya Carlson, Chair of the LCOG Audit Committee
introduced the auditor, Gatlin Hawkins, who stated the audit went well and there were
No surprises.

Gatlin explained there was a classification issue4 with the addition of Capital Assets
which had been received and recorded as Contract Services in the WIXII project. This
was not a Financial Statement issue and was due, in part, to timing. Brenda noted it
would be corrected and noted to be sure when vendors were contracted to work on a
project for LCOG and were going to buy equipment, that the invoices be split out so
that equipment could be properly categorized.

5. Draft January Board Meeting Agenda — Brenda added LEC Membership to the draft
agenda. The Committee unanimously approved.
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LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERMMENTS

Agenda Item Number
10. b.
Advisory Council Reports

Date: January 27, 2022

Presenter: Brenda Wilson

Action Recommended: None. Information Only

Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC)

October 7, 2021

Unanimously approved amendments to the MPC Bylaws allowing the City of
Coburg to appoint an elected or appointed official to serve on MPC.
Unanimously approved a letter of support for a City of Eugene Airport application
to the Connect Oregon grant program.

Heard a staff presentation, held a public hearing, and discussed proposed
amendments to the Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP)
Amendment Matrix that would allow streamlined handling of certain amendments
to the MTIP.

Heard an ODOT staff presentation and discussed proposals for increased
engagement in the MPO process by the ODOT Public Transportation Division
(PTD). MPC supported involvement of PTD staff in MPC's staff advisory
committee.

Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC)

November 4, 2021

Heard public comment on the closing of the Center for Appropriate Transport
(CAT) and the transition of the CAT space and assets to Better Eugene-
Springfield Transportation (BEST).



Heard a staff presentation, held a public hearing, and discussed the MPQO'’s draft
2045 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Congestion Management Process
(CMP).

Heard a staff presentation, held a public hearing, and discussed the MPQO'’s draft
Air Quality Conformity Determination (AQCD) for the 2045 RTP.

Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC)

December 2, 2021

Heard an ODOT staff presentation, discussed, and provided comments to ODOT
on priorities for the use of Oregon’s transportation funding from the federal
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (11JA).

Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC)

January 6, 2022

Unanimously approved Resolution 2022-01 adopting the 2045 Regional
Transportation Plan and Congestion Management Process.

Unanimously approved Resolution 2022-02 adopting the Air Quality Conformity
Determination for the 2045 RTP.

Approved formal testimony to the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC) on
priorities for the use of Oregon’s transportation funding from the federal
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.

Approved priorities for seven pending ODOT projects within the MPO area.
Heard a staff presentation on the federally-required FFY 2021 Annual Listing of
Federal Obligations describing the use of federal transportation funding in the
MPO during the previous federal fiscal year.

Lane Economic Committee (LEC)

October 11, 2021

Brenda Wilson, Executive Director of LCOG, reviewed LEC and it's goals. Ms.
Wilson explained the LEC needed to look at ways to implement the CEDS to
work with the 4-county economic development district to work towards shared
goals and solutions to problems.

Heard a presentation on Economic Development Administration grant
opportunities. There are more funds than usual in the grant as a result of the
ARPA funding, including funds for a jobs component to help workers enter quality
jobs and advance in their careers.

Heard a Homelessness Report from Brittany Quick-Warner, Eugene Chamber of
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Commerce, who shared the Chamber’s vision for the community: To have a
thriving local community where businesses could succeed, and individuals could
live happy healthy lives. Ms. Quick-Warner provided data on the number of
homeless which is far greater than the available shelter inventory. She explained
the Chamber’s recommendations are to strive for quality data, convene leaders,
and create shared goals with a collective impact, expand service provider
capacity, create more emergency shelter and permanent housing programs, do
more outreach and case management, provide wrap-around services, enforce
and hold those accountable who break the law, and rebuild community trust.

Lane Economic Committee (LEC)

November 8, 2021

Heard CEDS Stakeholder Group Update from Matt Michel, City Manager of
Veneta, who reviewed the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy
(CEDS). He presented results from a Regional Priority survey. The LEC would
need to discuss implemented of the three biggest priorities identified: economic
resilience, regional collaborations and partnerships, and business retention and
expansion. Mr. Michel shared that in the resilience matrix that no single industry
should account for more than 20 percent of county employment. Most categories
in Lane were under 20 percent, but in most Lane County cities, education was
the highest employment industry (30%).

Business Oregon Infrastructure and Entrepreneurship Mark Brady, an Innovation
Strategist at Oregon Business Development Department, spoke about the Small
Business Innovation Research (SBIR) program as well as a few other grant
opportunities. Mr. Brady explained the SBIR is essentially a small business set-
aside program that supports early-stage business R&D/product development.
The support grants are up to $5,000. Business Oregon also has a grant program
to assist with match required for SBIR funding.

Lane Economic Committee (LEC)

December 13, 2021

Early Learning and Economic Development Bess Jayme, Director of Education at
United Way, shared that United Way was the backbone for the regional state
funded Early Learning Hub. She mentioned that there was a childcare shortage
nationally and said that there were four main issues: supply, affordability, access,
and the work force. Sarah Moehrke, City of Florence, stated that the second
biggest concern in economic development, behind housing, was childcare. Ms.
Moehrke was working on putting together a group of Lane County stakeholders
who would spearhead the work.



Senior & Disability Services — Disability Services Advisory Council (DSAC)
September 17, 2021

e Presentation on Elder Abuse Awareness Month by S&DS Unit Manager Nicole
Newall. APS Unit provided a virtual Elder Abuse training series titled “Let’s Talk
About Abuse”. Four trainings were provided, and the topics ranged from what is
APS, Self-Neglect 101, and how agencies work together to investigate reports of
abuse.

e Heard report that there were 152 people on Oregon Project Independence (OPI)
60+ and 56 people on OPI Pilot. ADRC received 1,366 calls in August. The
Oregon Money Management program has served 153 consumers to date.
Oregon Legal Services has served 161 consumers for a collective 663 hours to
date.

e Senior Meals - MOW/Café. 6,733 meals have been served at Café 60 locations
and Meals on Wheels has served 28,956 meals this fiscal year.

November 19, 2021

e Staff report that a DSAC Community Forum was held on November 8", 2021 to
recruit more members to the DSAC. One application was received and will be
interviewed by the new Nominating Committee members on December 13.

e Heard report that there were 147 people on Oregon Project Independence (OPI)
60+ and 54 people on OPI Pilot. ADRC received 1,700 calls in August. The
Oregon Money Management program has served 156 consumers to date.
Oregon Legal Services has served 297 consumers for a collective 1,622 hours to
date. The Family Caregiver Respite program has provided 1,273 respite hours
fiscal year to date

e Senior Meals - MOW/Cafe 60:14,678 meals have been served at Café 60
locations and Meals on Wheels has served 49,187 meals this fiscal year.

Senior & Disability Services — Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC)
September 17, 2021

o Staff reported that the Senior Companion program has been reaching out via
phone during the COVID-19 pandemic instead of meeting in person. The Elder
Help Program has not been active since the start of COVID-19 pandemic.

November 19, 2021

e Presentation by Micah Goodman, Program Manager at S&DS, on how S&DS
Case Managers have been navigating Case Management services during the
COVID-19 pandemic, specifically not being able to meet consumers in their
homes. He shared during this pandemic staff were only allowed to visit
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consumers if they were experiencing a safety emergency. Mr. Goodman shared
S&DS staff would start slowly returning to the field in December 2021, continuing
to follow all safety precautions.

e Council voted unanimously to appoint Judy Dashney as SSAC Chair & Barbara
Susman as SSAC Vice-Chair

Senior & Disability Services — Advocacy Subcommittee
September 21, 2021

e Regular 2021 Legislative Session ended on June 30, 2021. Special session held
September 17, 2021 regarding redistricting. The 2022 Legislative Session will
only meet for 35 days between February 1, 2022, and March 7, 2022.

October 19, 2021

e At subcommittee request, staff shared that there is a “How to Avoid Scams”
virtual training series scheduled for December 6, 2021, Tuesday December 7,
2021, and Thursday December 9, 2021. This training is open to the public and is
free to attend.

November 16, 2021

e Committee members discussed the legislative action items that have been
shared by USAging (formerly National Association of Area Agencies on Aging —
n4a). Members discussed the Build Back Better Act which would add $2 billion to
the Older Americans Act (OAA) and ways to reach out to their Congress
members to advocate for OAA funding in the bill.

e Committee members discussed the current OPI 1115 Demonstration Waiver and
ways to advocate during the federal comment period.

December 21, 2021

e Report on Scam Trainings that were held on December 6", 7" & 9. S&DS Staff
hosted the trainings in partnership with S&DS APS, the Oregon Department of
Justice and AARP.
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